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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Palred Technologies Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Palred Technologies Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at March 31, 2020, the standalone
statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the standalone statement of
changes in equity and the standalone statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the standalone financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information (herein after referred to as the “standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended (“IND AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, the loss including other

comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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S.No.

Key audit Matters (Risk)

How Was the Key Audit Matter Addressed in the Audit

Valuation of Investments in Equity Shares of
Subsidiaries

Refer to the disclosures related to Investments in
Note 5 of the standalone financial statements for
the year ending March 31, 2020.

These investments are accounted for at cost in
accordance with Ind AS 27 "Separate Financial
Statements”.

The subsidiaries have been incurring continuous
losses in the past, resulting in possible
impairment indicators. The process for measuring
and recognizing impairment loss is complex and
requires management judgement. The key
assumptions underpinning management’s
assessment of valuation includes projections of
recoverable amounts of recognized assets and
liabilities, projections of revenue and market
valuation of the Subsidiary.

The recovery of investments depends on
subsidiaries establishing profitable business in
future. Based on the impairment testing done by
management, they have provided for impairment
of carrying value of the investment in
subsidiaries for Rs. 47,77,23,100 as at March 31,
2019 and no further impairment for additional
investment was made during the year 2019-20
since the fair value per share of the subsidiaries
in which investment has been made is greater
than the cost of investment made.

Considering the materiality, complexity and
significance of the judgement involved, valuation
of investments has been considered to be a key

audit matter.

Our audit procedures in respect of this area included:
1. Obtained an understanding and assessed management's
process and controls with respect to determining
valuation of investments.

2. Evaluated and tested the design and the operating
effectiveness of the key controls in relation to valuation.
3. Verified the assumptions & arithmetical accuracy for
the value per share of the subsidiaries in which
investment is made by the company.

4. Compared the pro rata share of net assets of each of
the subsidiaries to the investment held by the Company
and market value of the company to the consolidated net
worth.

5. Evaluated the appropriateness of the disclosures made
in the financial statement in relation to such investments

as required by applicable accounting standards.
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Assessment of Covid 19 impact

The World Health Organization announced a
global health emergency because of a new strain
of coronavirus (“COVID-19”) and classified its
outbreak as a pandemic on March 11, 2020. On
March 24, 2020, the Indian government
announced a strict 21-day lockdown across the
country to contain the spread of the virus, which
has been/was further extended till May 3, 2020.
This pandemic and response are creating
disruption in global supply chain and adversely
impacting most of the industries which has
resulted in global slowdown.

Covid-19 has contributed to a significant decline
and volatility in global and Indian economy. The
management has made an assessment of the
impact of COVID-19 on the Company's operations,
financial performance and position as at and for
the year ended March 31, 2020 and has
concluded that there is no impact which is
required to be recognised in the financial
statements. Accordingly, no adjustments have
been made to the financial statements.

The full extent and duration of the impact of
COVID-19 is currently unknown and the
assessment made by the Company involves a
significant of judgement including the duration
and spread of the pandemic and any new
information that may emerge concerning the
severity of the virus, its spread to other regions
and the actions to contain the virus or treat its
impact, among others. Hence, we have
ascertained the assessment of the impact of
Covid-19 and provision thereof as a Key Audit
Matter.

Our audit procedures in respect of this area included:
1. Testing the design and operating effectiveness of key

controls of assessment.

2.Testing of Application controls include testing of

automated controls, reports and system reconciliations.

3. Selecting samples based on quantitative and qualitative

risk factors.

4. Obtained an understanding and assessed the
appropriateness of the basis of evaluation of the

management.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the standalone financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion there on.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing

to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial

Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.
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We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the Standalone

Financial Statements.

Other Matter

The standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019, were

audited by another auditor whose report dated May 30, 2019 expressed an unmodified opinion on those

statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in
the “Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to

the extent applicable.
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so

far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report

are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,

2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to

our separate Report in “Annexure C”; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of

our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 29 to the standalone financial

statements;
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ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and
iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

3. As required by The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, in our opinion, according to
information, explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors

is within the limits prescribed under Section 197 of the Act and the rules thereunder.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registraﬁv No. 105047W

AN~

Amit Kumar Agarwal

Partner
Membership No. 214198
UDIN: 20214198AAAADI7286

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25t June 2020
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PALRED TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such

controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period
and are therefore, the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation procedures public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of

such communication.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

ALY

Amit Kumar Agarwal
Partner

Membership No.214198
UDIN: 20214198AAAADI7286

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25 June 2020
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ANNEXURE B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF PALRED TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2020

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report]

(a)

iii.

vi.

vii.

The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets (Property, Plant and Equipment).

Fixed assets (Property, Plant and Equipment) have been physically verified by the management
during the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the
Company.

The Company is involved in the business of rendering services. Accordingly, the provisions stated in
paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships (LLP) or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’). Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (iii) (a) to (c) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made. Further in
our opinion, the Company has not entered into any transaction covered under Section 185 and
Section 186 of the Act in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security made.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74, 75 and 76 of the Act
and the rules framed there under. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the order are no
applicable.

The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the
Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the
products of the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order are
not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined

by us , in our opinion , the Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues with
appropriate authorities including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods
and service tax, cess and other statutory dues applicable to it.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, goods and service tax, duty of
customs, cess and other statutory dues which were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.
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(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and examination of records of the

viii.

Xi.

Xii.

Xiii.

Xiv.

XV.

Company, the outstanding dues of income-tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, cess and any
other statutory dues on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the Nature of dues Amount Period to which Forum where
statute Rs. the amount relates dispute is
pending
Income Tax Act, | Income Tax 65,43,580 AY 2013-14 Income-Tax
1961 Appellate
Tribunal,
Hyderabad.

The Company has no loans or borrowings payable to a financial institution or a bank or government
and no dues payable to debenture holders during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause
3(viii) of the Order are not applicable.

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph
3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees.

according to information, explanations given to us, there is no remuneration paid by the Company
to its directors. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xi) of the Order are not
applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3(xii) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, the
provisions stated in paragraph 3 (xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(xv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.
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Xvi. In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvi) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

A

Amit Kumar Agarwal
Partner

Membership No. 214198
UDIN: 20214198AAAADI7286

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25% June 2020
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ANNEXURE C TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PALRED TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph (g) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of
Palred Technologies Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the

standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAl) (the “Guidance Note”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company'’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable

financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAlI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the internal financial controls
with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements,

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating

Page 12 of 14



effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial

statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to standalone
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance

with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an internal financial controls with reference
to standalone financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control
with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note.

For MSKA & Associates

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No. 105047W

A

Amit Kumar Agarwal
Partner

Membership No. 214198
UDIN: 20214198AAAADI7286

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25% June, 2020
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Palred Technologies Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Notes 31 March 2020 31 March 2020

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Propenrty, plant and equipment 3 955,913 1,329,406
Right of Use Assets 4 (a) 742 603 -
Financial assets

Investments B 128,076,800 88,076,900
Other non-current assets 6 24 238 762 23,420,350
Total non-current assets 154,014,178 112,826,656
Current assets
Financial assets

Investments 5 2,867,086 -

Trade receivables 7 3,224,355 -
Cash and cash equivalents 8 839,436 1,263,877
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivaient 9 144 763,073 192,294 807
Other financial assets 10 5,587 825 1,699,352
Other current assets 11 112,509 89,085
Total current assets 157,394 0&4 195,247,121
Total assets 311,408,262 308,073,777
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital . 12 ©7,325.660 97,325,660
Other equity 13 205,153,068 206,330,308
Total equity 302,478,728 303,656,059
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 14 1,288,538 367,778
Total non-current liabilities 1,268,538 367,778
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 4 (b) 806,502 -
Other financial liabilities 15 6,593,680 2.812,508
Other current liabilities 16 226,152 227,928

_ Provisions 14 14 662 9 509
Total current lizbilities 7,640,656 4049640
Total liabilities 8,526,534 4,417,718
Total equity and liabilities 311,408,262 308,073,777
See accompanying notes to the financial statements 1-33

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date
For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registrﬁn No.:105047W

e

Amit Kumar Agarwal
Partner
Membership No: 214198

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25 June 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Palred Technologies Limited

SRIKANTH
REDDY PALEM

Do AT L

Palem Srikanth Reddy
Managing Director
DIN:00025889

N LY

Pinekaiapati Harish Naidu
Cnief Finance Officer

IN: L72200T 19

033131

S. Vijaya Saradhi
Director
DiN: 03089889

e
Shruti Rege
Company Secretary
Membership No: A43523
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Palred Technologies Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Income

Revenue from operations

Other income

Total income

Expenses

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amartization expense

Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit /(Loss) before exceptional item

Exceptional item

Profit /(Loss) before tax

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per equity share

Basic & Diluted earnings per equity share

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year and considered for calculation of
basic and diluted EPES

Nominal value per equity share

Notes

1
18

19
20
21
22

23

See accompanying notes to the financial statements  1-33
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial stalements.

As per our report of even date
For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.:105047W

Amit Kumar Agarwal
Partner
Membership No: 214198

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25 June 2020

imBEHRa

For the Year

T e e N

fEaE R b

For the Year

end end
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
8,238,766 -
10,421,478 15,375,849
19.660,244 15,375,849
10,899,815 6,408,250
87,965 -
1,131,275 1,092,249
8,424 803 6,972 267
20,543,858 14,473,766
(883,614) 902,083
d (477,723,100)
(8E3,614) (47€,821,017)
(293,717) (52,936)
(293,717) (52,936)

{478,815,953)

(0.09) (48.99)
9,732,566 9,732,566
10 10

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Palred Technologies Limited
CIN: L72200TG1989PLC 1

Ehget o mgrins iy SARANTH REICY Pt
D culh. s prinnal craSBARTH SEIDY

SRIKANTH e

REDDY
PALEM

el b 4 DR T 5
A N e TR ey

s Telingins
Dt JU3006.23 194303 42530

S. Vijaya Saradhi

Pinekalapati-‘Harish Naidu

Palem Srikanth Reddy
Managing Director Director
DIN:00025889 DIN: 030E98E9

L
Shruti Rege

Company Secretary
Membership No: A43523

e

Chief Finance Officer



(A)Equity share capital

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

For the Year
end
31 March 2020

For the Year
end
31 March 2019

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued,
subscribed and fully paid 9,732,566

Opening
Add: issue during the year
Closing

9,732,566

97,325,660

9,732,566 97,325,660

9,732,566 97,325,660

9,732,566 97,325,660

Reserves and surplus

Other Comprehensive

{B) Other equity ln§ome
Capital Security General Retained Reg;egeszr;eégent Sk
Reserve premium reserve earnings benefit plans
defined benefit plans
Balance as at 1 April 2018 14,280,000 672,030,093 132,524,353 (135,629,088) (1,006) 683,204,352
Loss for the year - B - (476,821,017) - (476,821,017)
Other comprehensive loss - - - - (52,936) (52,9386)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 14,260,000 672,030,093 132,524,353 (612,450,105)  (53,942) 206,330,399
Loss for the year - - - (883,614) - (883,614)
Other comprehensive loss - = - - (293,717) (293,717)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 14,280,000 672,030,083 132,524,353 (613,333,719) (347,659) 205,153,068

See accompanying notes to the financial statements  1-33
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flow from operating activities

Loss before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Dividend on Mutual Fund

Finance cost

Interest income

Impairment towards invesiment in subsidiaries
Operating loss before working capital changes
Changes in working capital

{Decrease)/ increase in trade receivables
(Decrease)/ increase in other current liabilities
(Decrease)/ increase in non-current liabilities
(Decrease)/increase in provisions

Decrease/ (increase) in other financial assels
Decreasel/(increase) in other current assets
Decreasel (Increase) in non-current assets

Cash generated used in operations

Income Tax

Net cash flows used in operating activities (A)
Cash flow from Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and eguipment.

Net proceeds from mutual funds

Purchase of Investments

Dividend income from mutual funds

Net proceeds from fixed deposits

Interest received

Net cash flow from investing activities (B)
Cash fiow from Financing activities

Interest paid

Net cash flow from financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
ash and cash equivalents comprise

Balances with banks

On current accounts

Cash on hand

Total cash and bank balances at end of the year

For the Year
end
31 March 2020

T T S S e

& 4 TR

For the Year
end
31 March 2019

(883,614)

1,131,275
(267,086)

87.965
(10,154,392)

(476,821,017)

1,092,249
(497,641)
(14,878,208)
477,723.100

(10,085,852)

(13,381,517)

(3.224,355)

(1.775) 80,679
3,587,679 498,292
632,196 76,871
(3,988,273) :
(23,424) (1,138,101)
427172 =
(12,676,632) (13,863,776)
1,245 584 1,327,886

(13,922,216)

1,662)

(1,500,385}

(2,867,086) 59,866.397
(40,000,000) (100,400,000)
267,086 497,641
47,531,734 36,307,290
10,154,391 18,794,495
13,565,740 15,067,823
(87,965) -
(87.9€5) '
(424,447) (123,839)
1,263.877 1,387,716
839,436 1,263,877
790,692 1,248,161
48,744 15,716
839,436 1,263,877

See accompanying notes to the financial statements  1-33

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate Information

Palred Technologies Limited (the "Company”) is a public company incorporated and domiciled in India and incorporated in
accordance with the provisions of the erstwhile Companies Act, 1956. The Company’s registered office is at 8-2-703/2/B/, Plot
No.2, Road No.12, Banjara Hills, Hyderabad, Telangana-500 034. Its shares are listed on two recognised stock exchanges of
India, the National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited. The Company is engaged in the business of E commerce. The
Board of Directors approved the Standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020 and authorised for issue on
25 June 2020.

2. Basis of preparation of standalone financial statements
Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

These standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act”) read with rule 3 of the the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA").

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly issued accounting standard
is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.
These financial statements have been prepared for the Company as a going concern on the basis of relevant IND AS that are
effective at the Company's annual reporting date 31 March 2020.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual basis, except for the following material
items in the Balance sheet:i) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured either at fair value; andii) Net defined assets/
(Liability) are measured at fair value of plan assets, less present value of defined benefit obligations.

(i) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgements, estimate and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of assets and liabilities, the disclosures
of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of financial statements and reported amount of revenues and expenses during
the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate
changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates.
Changes in estimates are reflected in the standalone financial statements in the period in which changes are made and in any
future periods effected.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements is included in the following notes:

i. Note (c ) and (d) — Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets;

ii. Note (e) — Impairment;

iii. Note (g) — Financial instruments;
iv. Note (k) — Employee benefits;

v. Note (m) — Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets; and
vi. Note () — Income taxes

(ii) Summary of significant accounting policies

The standalone financial statements have been prepared using the accounting policies and measurement basis summarized
below.

a. Functional Currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('INR’) which is also the functional and presentation currency

of the Company. All financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded 1o the nearest Rupee, unless otherwise
stated.

b. Current and non-current classification "

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company's normal operating cycle and
other criteria set out in the Division - Ind AS Schedule Il to the Act. The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance
sheet based on current/ non-current classification.




An asset is classified as current when it is:

i. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.
ii. Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

iii. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv. Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.

A liability is classified as current when:

i. It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.

ii. It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.

iii. It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
Current assets/ liabilities include the current portion of non-Current assets/liabilities respectively. All other assets/ liabilities
including deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

c. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. The cost comprises purchase price, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities), borrowing cost
if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use,
and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. If significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (Major
components) of PPE.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement
when the asset is derecognised.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as
capital advances. Capital Work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation/ under development
as at the balance sheet date.

Depreciation on property, pant and equipment is calculated on pro-rata basis on straight line method using the useful lives of the
assets estimated by management. The useful life is as follows:

Asset -8 Useful life (in years)
Leasehold improvement Lease period
Vehicles 10 years

Furniture and Fixtures 10 years

Office Equipment 5 years

Computers:

-Servers 6 years

-End user devices such as, desktops, laptops etc. 3 years

Depreciation on additions/ disposals is provided on pro-rata basis i.e. from/ up to the date on which asset is ready for use/
disposed-off.

The useful lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events. The residual values
are not more than 5% of the original cost of the assets. The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed
at each financial year- end and adjusted retrospectively, if appropriate.

d. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization and impairment. These are derecognised upon
disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Gains or losses arising from disposal of the intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the assets are disposed off.
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Intangible assets are amortized over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The other intangible assets comprise of computer software expenditure and are
amortized over a period of three years. The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset is reviewed
at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates.

e. Impairment
Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's tangible and intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or the cash-generating unit for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped
together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets.

An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss if the estimated recoverable amount of an asset or its cash
generating unit is lower than its carrying amount. If, at the reporting date there is an indication that a previously assessed
impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been previously recognised.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss ("ECL") model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost.

Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected
credit losses. For all other financial assets, ECL are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been
a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at lifetime ECL.

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from gross carrying amount of the assets.

f. Leases:

The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the comparative information has
not been restated and continues to be reported under Ind AS 17.

Company as a lessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is
initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of
the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets
are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced
by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, company's incremental
borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: —

i. Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

ii. Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at thecommencement date;
iii. Amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

iv. The exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional
renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a
lease unless the Company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company's estimate of the amount
expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a
purchase, extension or termination option. =
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When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of
use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘property, plant and equipment’
and lease liabilities in ‘loans and borrowings' in the statement of financial position. (Refer 4)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases of real estate properties
that have a lease term of 12 months. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Comparative Information under Ind AS 17

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Company classified leases that transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership as finance leases. When this was the case, the leased assets were measured initially at an amount equal to the
lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Minimum lease payments were the payments
over the lease term that the lessee was required to make, excluding any contingent rent.

Subsequently, the assets were accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

Assets held under other leases were classified as operating leases and were not recognised in the Company's statement of
financial position. Payments made under operating leases were recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease. Lease incentives received were recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the
lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an asset to the Company. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Finance leases are capitalised
at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate.
Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
Land under perpetual lease for is accounted as finance lease which is recognised at upfront premium paid for the lease and the
present value of the lease rent obligation. The corresponding liability is recognised as a finance lease obligation. Land under
non-perpetual lease is treated as operating lease.

Operating lease payments for land are recognised as prepayments and amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease. Contingent rentals, if any, arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

g. Financial Instruments
Initial Recognition and measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value and, for an item not at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial Assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
i. amortised cost;

ii. fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") — debt investment;
iii. FVTOCI - equity investment; or
iv. FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its
business model for managing financial assets.

Amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:




i. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
ii. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in Other Income in the statement of profit or loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

FVTOCI - debt investment

A debt investment is measured at FVTOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
i. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets; and

ii. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI! category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value.
Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognises interest
income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss. On derecognition
of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit or loss.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Equity investment

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as FVTOCI — equity investment). This election is made
on an investment by- investment basis.

If the Company decides to classify ari equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, including
foreign exchange gain or loss and excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from
OCl to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.
Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

FVTPL

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes
all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is
classified as held- for- trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL
are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit or
loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition
is also recognised in statement of profit or loss.

De-recognition

Financial assets

Afinancial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Company
has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.




Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts and interest rate risk exposures to hedge
its risk associated with foreign currency fluctuations and changes in interest rates. Derivatives are initially measured at fair value
and subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally recognised in
statement of profit or loss, since the Company's hedging instruments did not qualify for hedge accounting in accordance with the
Ind-AS 39. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value
is negative.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand, deposit held at call with financial institutions, other short - term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Dividend distribution to equity holders of the Company

The Company recognises a liability to make dividend distributions to equity holders of the Company when the distribution is
authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India, a distribution is
authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

h. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Company at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting period are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies which are carried at
historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at

fair value or any other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from those
at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.
i. Investments in the nature of equity in subsidiaries

The Company has elected to recognise its investments in equity instruments in subsidiaries at cost in the separate financial
statements in accordance with the option available in Ind AS 27, ‘Separate Financial Statements’.

The Company regardless of the nature of its involvement with an entity (the investee), determines whether it is a parent by
assessing whether it controls the investee. The Company controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Thus,
the Company controls an investee if and only if it has all the following:

(a) power over the investee;

(b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and

(c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the returns.

Investments are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 105 when they are classified as held for sale. On disposal of investment,
the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss.




j. Revenue recognition

The Company has adopted Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contracts with customers, using modified retrospective application method
with effect from 1 April 2018 and accordingly these financial statements are prepared in accordance with the recognition and
measurement principles laid down in Ind AS 115. The application of Ind AS 115 did not have any significant impact on recognition
and measurement of revenue and related items in the financial statements of the Company as the Company is yet to identify the
business opportunities in the areas of IT Solutions and services.

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upon transfer of control of promised products or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or
services. Other income - Interest income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate applicable. For all
debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider
the expected credit losses.

Other income - Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Company'’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally, when
shareholders approve the dividend.

k. Retirement and other employee benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company's contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as and when the services are received
from the employees entitling them to the contributions.

Defined benefit plan

The liability in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated using the projected unit credit method with actuarial valuations being
carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. The Company recognises the net obligation of a defined benefit plan as a
liability in its balance sheet. Gains or losses through remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability are recognised in other
comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit and loss in the subsequent periods. The effect of any plan amendments
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits comprise of employee costs such as Salaries, bonus etc. is recognized on an undiscounted and
accrual basis during the period when the employee renders service of the benefit.

|. Taxes

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit or loss consists of current and deferred tax except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in OCI or directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in OCI or directly in equity respectively.

Current income tax, assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation
authorities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICDS) enacted
in India by using tax rates and the tax laws that are enacted at the reporting date. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset
where the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when
they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same tax authority on the Company.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the




temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. Withholding tax arising out of payment of dividends to shareholders
under the Indian Income tax regulations is not considered as tax expense for the Company and all such taxes are recognised in the
statement of changes in equity as part of the associated dividend payment.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent it is reasonably certain that the Company
will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance sheet date and the carrying amount
of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay
normal income tax during the specified period.

As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, the Company has deferred tax asset on account of unabsorbed business loss, unabsorbed
tax depreciation and other items, which have not been recognized on the grounds of prudence. Consequently, there is no deferred
tax asset or liability recorded in the financial statements as at reporting periods presented.

Further, as at 31 March, 2020 and 31 March, 2019, the Company has MAT credit of Rs. 9,17,53,770, carried forwarded under the
Income-tax laws, not recognised in books due to lack of reasonably certainty.

m. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate of the
amount of obligation can be made at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of money is material.
Contingent liability is disclosed for:

i. Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or
ii. Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed. However, when realization of income is virtually certain, related asset is
recognized.

n. Cash flow statement .
The Cash flow statement is prepared as per the Indirect Method. Cash flow statement present the cash flows by operating, financing
and investing activities of the Company. Operating cash flows are are arrived by adjusting profit or loss before tax for the effects of

transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments, and items of
income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows.

o. Exceptional ltems
Exceptional items are transactions which due to their size or incidence are separately disclosed to enable a full understanding of
the Company's financial performance. ltems which may be considered exceptional are significant restructuring charges, gains or

losses on disposal of investments in subsidiaries, impairment losses/write down in value of investment in subsidiaries, significant
disposal of fixed assets etc.

p. Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss

attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

q. Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

r. Standards, not yet effective and have not been adopted early by the Company

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such notification
which would have been applicable from 1 April 2020.There are no standards that are issued but not yet effective on 31 March 2020.




Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

3. Property, plant and equipment Cebataii Fu;nr::jure Office

Improvement  Vehicles  Fixtures  CauiPment  Computers  Total
Gross carrying value (at deemed cost)
As at 1 April 2018 316,020 34,178 3,746,545 592,766 573,984 5,263,493
Additions = = - - - -
Disposals/retirement - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2019 316,020 34,178 3,746,545 592,766 573,984 5,263,493
Additions - - - - 15,178 - 15,178
Disposals/retirement - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 316,020 34,178 3,746,545 607,944 573,984 5,278,671
Accumulated depreciation
Up to 1 April 2018 239,027 15,501 1,957,398 460,569 470,590 3,143,085
Charge for the year 54,110 4,835 611,474 63,557 57,026 791,002
Adjustments for disposals/retirement - - - . 3 %
Balance as at 31 March 2019 293,137 20,336 2,568,872 524,126 527,616 3,934,087
Charge for the year 22,883 3,683 304,788 33,371 24,046 388,671
Adjustments for disposals/retirement - - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2020 316,020 23,919 2,873,660 557,497 551,662 4,322,758
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2019 22,883 13,842 1,177,673 68,640 46,368 1,329,406
Net carrying value as at 31 March 2020 . - 10,259 872,885 50,447 22,322 955,913




Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

(4)a Right of Use Asset as at 31 March 2020

2 Category of
Particulars ROU Asset Total
Balance as at 1 April 2019 - -
Additions 1,485,207 1,485,207
Deletions - -
Depreciation 742,604 742,604
Balance as at 31 March 2020 742,603 742,603
The aggregate depreciation expenses on ROU Assets is included
under depreciation and amortization expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Lease liabilities as at 31 March 2020
Particulars As at

i) Non-Current

31 March 2020

i) Current 806,502
Total 806,502
The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31st March 2020 is as follows:

Particulars ; As at

Balance as at 1 April 2019
Additions

Finance cost accrued during the year
Deletions

Payment of lease liabilities

Balance as at 31 March 2020

31 March 2020

1,485,207
87,965
766,670
806,502

The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2020 on an undiscounted basis as follows:

Particulars

Less than one year
One year to three years
More than three years
Total

As at
31 March 2020

806,502

806,502




Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

5. Financial Assets- Investments

For the Year
end

31 March 2020

For the Year
end

31 March 2019

A. Non-Current

Investments in unquoted equity shares (Fully paid up, unless stated otherwise)
In Subsidiaries (Carried at cost)

i) Palred Electronics Private Limited( Formerly known as Palred

Online Technologies Private Limited), principal place

of business at Hyderabad, India

Number of shares 27,206,574 26,861,747
Par value of each share
10 10
% of holding 78.17% 77.95%
Gross Carrying Amount
45,300,000 435,300,000
Impairment towards investments - 349,602,930
Net Carrying Amount
45,300,000 85,697,070
ii) Palred Retail Private Limited, principal place of business at Hyderabad, India
Number of shares 3,040,000 2,040,000
Par value of each share
10 10
% of holding
97.81% 96.77%
Gross Carrying Amount
30,400,000 20,400,000
Impairment towards investments
) - 18,020,170
Net Carrying Amount
30,400,000 2,379,830
i)y Palred Technology Services Private Limited,
principal place of business at Hyderabad, India
Number of shares 13,010,000 11,010,000
Par value of each share 10 10
% of holding 100% 100%
Gross Carrying Amount 52,376,900 110,100,000
Impairment towards investments - 110,100,000
Net Carrying Amount 52.376.900 -
Total 128,076,900 88,076,900
B. Current
Investments in mutual funds, non-trade, unquoted
2834.153 units (31 March 2019: Nil) of Kotak Arbitrage Fund -
Monthly Dividend Reinvestment plan
2,867,086 -
Total 2,867,086 -
Note:
Aggregate amount of quoted investments 2,867,086 -
Aggregate book value of unquoted investments 128,076,900 88,076,900
Aggregate amount of impairment of value in investment - 477,723,100

Exceptional item- Impairment towards investment in subsidiaries

The investment in subsidiaries are tested for impairment annually or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be
impaired. During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, due to increase in the competition and the customer acquisition costs, the
management has estimated the recoverable amount of investments in subsidiaries based on the projections of recoverable amounts
of recognized assets and liabilities of Palred Group and market valuation of the Company. On the basis of management evaluation,
the aggregate carrying amount of investments exceeds the aggregate recoverable amount by Rs. 47,77,23,100 and accordingly, the
Board of Directors of the Company have considered to create a provision against such investments in subsidiaries amounting to
Rs. 47,77,23,100 for the year ended 31 March 2019 under exceptional item, considering the significance of them.




Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

For the Year For the Year
end end
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
6 Other non-current assets
Advance tax (net of provision) 23,239,270 21,993,686
Balances with government authorities 999,492 1,426,664
Total other non-current other assets 24,238,762 23,420,350
7 Trade receivable
Non-Current Current
R As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Secured, considered good - - - -
Unsecured
- Considered good - - 3224355 -
£ e 3224355 -
Further classified as
Receivable from related parties - - - -
(Refer footnote i) .
Receivable from other - - 3224355 -
3224355

Foot note i : Include due from following Companies in which the Company is having common directors:

* As at As at As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Palred Electronics Private Limited - - 2,416,757 -
Palred Retail Private Limited - - 370,766 -
Palred Technology Services Private Limited - - 436,832 -
- - 3,224,355 -

All amounts are short-term. The net carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value.

8 Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Balances with banks On current accounts 790,692 1,248,161
Cash on hand 48.744 15,716
839,436 1,263,877
9 Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalent As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Balance in unpaid dividend account 3,403,237 1,840,195
Balance in unpaid capital reduction account 1,359,836 800,802

In Fixed deposit with maturity for more than 3 months butless than
12 months from balance sheet date 140,000,000 189,653,810
144,763,073 192,294,807

Note: The Subsidiary entities (Palred Electronics Private Limited and Palred Technology Services Private Limited) taken the over draft
facilities from ICIC| Bank against the Fixed deposits.

10 Other financial assets As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 4,822 513 1,599,352
Accrued income 765,112 -

5,587,625 1,599,352
11 Other current assets As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Advance recoverable in kind 46,328 20,576
Prepaid expenses 66,181 — 68,509

112,509 //QPMNQ,OBS

u‘cilj -
Wi Hyp,
%

o .

538
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12 Share capital

Equity shares As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March2019

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount

Authorized

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 28,038,800 280,388,000 28,038,800 280,388,000

14% Preference Shares of Rs.100 each 696,120 69,612,000 696,120 69,612,000

Issued, subscribed and paid up

Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid 9,732,566 97,325,660 9,732,566 97,325,660

Total 9,732,566 97,325,660 9,732,566 97,325,660

(a) Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
For the period ended 31 March 2020  For the period ended 31 March 2019

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Balance at the beginning of the year 9,732,566 97,325,660 9,732,566 97,325,660
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 9,732,566 97,325,660 9,732,566 97,325,660

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is entitled to one vote per share
held. Dividend if any declared is payable in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to
receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of
equity shares held by the shareholders.

( c) Details of shareholders holding more than.5% equity shares in the Company

Name of the equity shareholder As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Number % holding Number % holding
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Stuthi Reddy 1,000,000 10.27% 1,000,000 10.27%
Supriya Reddy Palem 1,000,000 10.27% 1,000,000 10.27%
Sanhita Reddy 1,000,000 10.27% 1,000,000 10.27%
Passage to India Master Fund Limited 701,586 7.21% 701,586 7.21%
Ashish Dhawan 678,189 6.97% 678,189 6.97%
Palem Srikanth Reddy 602,261 6.19% 602,261 6.19%

(d) No class of shares have been issued as bonus shares or for consideration other than cash by the Company during the period of five years
immediately preceding the current year end.

( e) Shares reserved for issue under options

The Company has established Palred Employee Stock Option scheme 2016 (‘ESOP 2016”) to administer for grant of options not exceeding
4,00,000 equity shares to eligible employees. The minimum vesting period shall be one year from the date of grant of options and maximum
vesting period shall not exceed five years. The exercise price per option shall not be less than face value of equity share and shall not exceed
market price of the equity share of the Company as on the date of grant of option.

(f) Capital reduction of equity shares during 5 years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date

Subsequent to the approval of the High Court of Judicature at Hyderabad for the State of Telangana and Andhra Pradesh for reduction of 60%
of the paid up equity share capital during the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the Company has returned an amount of Rs. 16.50 at a
premium of Rs. 11.50 per share and cancelled extinguished 60% of the equity shares of the Company of face value of Rs. 5 each in July 2015.
After reduction, the issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of Rs. 19,51,84,850 consisting of Rs. 3,90,36,970 equity shares of Rs.
5 each fully paid-up was reduced to Rs. 7,80,73,940 consisting of Rs. 1,56,14,788 equity shares of Rs. 5 each.

Number of shares
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2020

Aggregate number of capital reduction of equity shares 23,422,182




13 Other equity

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

Reserves and surplus
Capital Reserve
Securities premium
General reserve
Retained earnings

Total reserves and surplus

Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan

Total other comprehensive income

Total Other equity

14,280,000 14,280,000
672,030,093 672,030,093
132,524,353 132,524,353
(613,333,719) (612,450,105)

205,500,727 206,384,341

(347,659) (53,942)
(347,659) (53,942)
205,153,068 206,330,399

Nature and Purpose of reserve:
i. Capital Reserve

The reserve represents creation of capital reserve pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation. The Company uses capital reserve for

transactions in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

ii. Securities Premium Account

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in securities premium. In case of equity-settled share based
payment transactions, the difference between fair value on grant date and face value of share is accounted as securities premium. This

reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
iii. General reserve

General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes.

iv. Remeasurement of defined benefit plan

The reserve represents the remeasurement gains/(losses) arising from the actuarial valuation of the defined benefit plan of the Company.
The remeasurement gains/(losses) are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated under this reserve within equity. The
amounts recognized under this reserve are not reclassified to statement of profit or loss.

14 Provisions

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

Non-current .

Gratuity (refer note (a)) 1,288,538 367,778
1,288,538 367,778

Current
Gratuity (refer note (a)) 14,662 9,509
14,662 9,509

(a) Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of the Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in continuous
service for a period of five years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is the employees last
drawn basic salary per month computed proportionally 15 days salary multiplied for the number of the years of service. The gratuity plan is
unfunded. The assumptions used in accounting for the gratuity plan are set out below.

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

i. Change in projected benefit obligation

Projected benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 377,087 247,480
Service cost 154,439 57,665
Interest cost 60,125 19,006
Actuarial (gain) / loss 293,717 52,936
Settlements 417,832 -
Benefits paid = -
Projected benefit obligation at the end of the year 1,303,200 377,087
ii. Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss

Service cost 154,439 57,665
Interest cost 60,125 19,006
Expected returns on plan assets

Net gratuity costs 214,564 76,671
iii. Expense recognized in OCI

Recognized net actuarial (gain)/ loss 293,717 52,936
iv. Key actuarial assumptions

Financial assumptions

Discount rate 6.04% 7.59%
Salary escalation rate 7.00% 7.00%

Demographic assumptions

For Service 4 years and below 5%
For Service 5 years and above 2%




Mortality rate as per Indian Assured Lives Mortality 2012-14 table
v. Sensitivity Analysis
Projected defined benefit obligation

Delta effect of +1% change in discount rate (132,041) (34,651)
Delta effect of -1% change in discount rate 155,605 41,705
Delta effect of -1% change in discount rate 121,423 41,532
Delta effect of -1% change in salary escalation rate (132,087) (35,124)

vi. Maturity analysis of projected benefit obligation

1 year 26,943 9,509
2 to 5 years 291,441 196,293
6 to 10 years 169,644 37,886

More than 10 years

The significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are the discount rate and salary
escalation rate. The calculation of the net defined benefit liability is sensitive to these assumptions. Sensitivity to these factors is
disclosed above.

15 Other financial liabilities As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Current
Unpaid dividends 3,403,237 1,840,195
Unclaimed capital reduction 1,359,835 800,802
Other Payables 1,830,608 1,171,506
Total other financial liabilities 6,593,680 3,812,503
16 Other current liabilities As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Statutory dues payable 226,152 227,928
Total other current liabilities ' 226,152 227,928
17 Revenue from operations For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Sale of Services:
E commerce fulfiiment charges 1,519,740 -
Management fees 7,719,026 -
Total revenue from operations 9,238,766 -
18 Other income For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Interest Income 10,154,392 14,878,208
Dividend From Mutual Funds 267,086 497,641
Total other income 10,421,478 15,375,849
19 Employee benefits expense For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances 10,250,146 5,927,745
Contribution to Provident Fund 193,970 136,324
Gratuity expenses (Refer note 14) 214,564 76,671
Staff welfare expenses 241,135 268,510

10,899,815 6,409,250
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Finance costs
Interest Expense on lease liability

Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of ROU Assets

Other expenses

Rent

Rates and taxes

Office expenses

Communication, broadband and internet expenses
Postage and courier

Insurance

Travelling and conveyance

Legal and professional charges*
Auditor's Remuneration (Refer Note i)
Sitting Fees

Hosting Expenses

Advertisement

Advances written off

Donations

Miscellaneous expenses

Note i : The following is the break-up of Auditors remuneration (exclusive of Goods and service tax)

As auditor:
Statutory audit
Total

Exceptional items

Impairment Cost

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended

31 March 2019

87,965

87,965

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

388,671 1,092,249
742,604 -
1,131,275 1,092,249

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended
31 March 2019

- 600,000
1,180,126 635,956
2,011,836 2,450,222

107,146 92,979
2,240 101,710
12,292 27,926
1,136,286 988,528
1,212,035 1,028,078
1,200,000 936,000
20,000 -
1,501,573 -
14,880 -
- 100,000
15,000
11,389 10,868
8,424,803 6,972,267

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended

31 March 2019

1,200,000

936,000

1,200,000

936,000

For the year ended
31 March 2020

For the year ended

31 March 2019

(477,723,100)

(477,723,100)
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24 Earnings per equity share (EPES)

Basic earnings /(loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year attributable to equity holders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings /(loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/loss attributable to equity holders (after adjusting
for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year
plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares
into equity shares. ;

The following reflects the loss and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Loss attributable to equity holders (883,614) (476,821,017)
Weighted average number of equity shares 9,732,566 9,732,566
Basic loss per share (INR) (0.09) (48.99)
Diluted loss per share (INR) (0.09) (48.99)

25 Fair value measurements

(i) Fair value hierarchy
Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three
levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to themeasurement,
as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

(ii) Financial assets and financial liabilities As at 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
measured at fair value Level 2 Level 3 Level 2 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets

Current Investments 2,867,086 - - - .

There are no transfers between levels during the year. The Company’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels at the end of the reporting period.

(iii) Financial instruments by category
For amortised cost instruments, carrying value represents the best estimate of fair value.

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
FVTPL Amortised cost FVTPL Amortised cost

Financial Assets
Current Investments 2,867,086 - - -
Trade receivables - 3,224,355 - -
Cash and cash equivalents - 839,436 - 1263,877
Other Bank balances - 144,763,073 - 192,294,807
Other financial assets - 5,587,625 - 1,699,352
Total financial assets 2,867,086 154,414,489 - 195,158,036
Financial liabilities
lease liability - 806,502 - -
Other financial liabilities - 6,593,680 - 3,812,503
Total financial liabilities : - 7,400,182 - 3,812,503




iv. The Company’s principal financial liabilities, comprise other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
finance the Company’s operations. The Company's principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, cash and
cash equivalents and other bank balances that derive directly from its operations. The Company also holds FVTPL investments.
The carrying amounts of trade receivables, and cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values,
due to their short-term nature. Difference between carrying amounts and fair values of bank deposits, other financial assets,
other financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost is not significant in each of the years presented. For all other
amortised cost instruments, carrying value represents the best estimate of fair value.

For financial assets measured at fair values, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values.
26 Financial instruments risk management

The Company is exposed to financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial instruments. The key financial
risks include market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and
analyse the risks faced by the Company and seek to, where appropriate, minimize potential impact of the risk and to control and
monitor such risks. There has been no change to the Company’'s exposure to these financial risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

The following sections provide details regarding the Company’s exposure to the financial risks associated with financial instruments
held in the ordinary course of business and the objectives, policies and processes for management of these risks:

A. Market risk:

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may results from adverse changes in market
rates (such as interest rates) or in the price of market risk-sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse changes in market
rates and prices. Market risk is attributable to all market risk-sensitive financial instruments. The Company’s exposure to market
risk is a function of investing activities.

B. Credit risk

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invest in deposits with banks and financial
institutions with high credit ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include
investment in liquid mutual fund units and certificate’s of deposit which are funds deposited at a bank for a specified time period.
None of the Company’s cash equivalents, including term deposits (i.e. certificates of deposits) were past due or impaired as at
the reporting periods.

C. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company
manages its liquidity risk by ensuring, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due,
under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Company's reputation.

The Company's principle sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and current investments. The Company believes
that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived. The Company
closely monitors its liquidity position and maintains adequate source of funding. The Company had following working capital at
the end of the reporting year.

Particulars As at31 March 2020 As at31 March 2019
Current Assets 157,394,084 195,247 121
Current liabilities 7,640,996 4,049,940
Working Capital 149,753,088 191,197,181

27 Capital risk management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that it will continue as going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders. The Company manages its capital structure and make adjustment in light of changes in business condition.
The overall strategy remains unchanged as compared to last year. There is no debt in the Company as on the reporting dates
presented and accordingly, gearing ratio is nil as at various reporting dates.




28 Related Party disclosures

(a) Names of the related parties and nature of relationship

Names of related parties Country Nature of relationship

Palred Electronics Private Limited-Subsidiary | India | SubsidiaryPalred Retail Private Limited- |
Subsidiary | India Subsidiary

Palred Technology Services Private Limited Step-down subsidiary

Mr. Palem Srikanth Reddy

Mr. Pinekalapati Harish Naidu, CFO
Mrs. Shruti Rege, Company Secretary
Ms. Supriya Reddy

Ms. Stuthi Reddy

‘ India ‘

Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Key Management Personnel
Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Relatives of Key Management Personnel

(b)Transactions with related parties:

Related Party

Transaction

For the year ended

For the year ended

31 March 2019 31 March 2020
Palred Electronics Private Limited Investment in equity shares 10,000,000 60,000,000
Palred Retail Private Limited Investment in equity shares 10,000,000 20,400,000
Palred Technology Services Private Limited Investment in equity shares 20,000,000 20,000,000
Palred Electronics Private Limited Reimbursement of expenses - 20,816
Palred Retail Private Limited Reimbursement of expenses - 11,864
Palred Technology Services Private Limited Reimbursement of expenses - 114,814
Palred Electronics Private Limited Ecom Fulfilment Services 117,700 -
Palred Retail Private Limited Ecom Fulfilment Services 1,397,575 -
Palred Technology Services Private Limited Ecom Fulfilment Services 4,465 -
Palred Electronics Private Limited Pledge of fixed deposits against

working capital limits 76,000,000 -
Palred Technology Services Private Limited Pledge of fixed deposits against
working capital limits 57,000,000 -

Palred Electronics Private Limited Management Fee 5,393,444 -
Palred Retail Private Limited Management Fee 525,582 -
Palred Technology Services Private Limited Management Fee 1,800,000 -
Mr. Palem Srikanth Reddy Remuneration® 3,000,000 3,000,000
Mr. Palem Srikanth Reddy Reimbursement of expenses 979,262 292,589
Mr. Pinekalapati Harish Naidu Salaries including bonuses 2,500,000 2,500,000
Mr. Pinekalapati Harish Naidu Reimbursement of expenses 80,181 -
Mrs. Shruti Rege Salaries including bonuses 601,000 -
Ms. Supriya Reddy Rent - 200,000
Ms. Stuthi Reddy Rent 766,670 400,000

*Remuneration not include post employment benefits and other long term employee benefit expenditure which are

computed for Company as a whole.

( ¢) Balances receivable/(payables)

Palred Electronics Private Limited
Palred Retail Private Limited

31 March 2020

As at As at

31 March 2019

2,416,757 -

Palred Technology Services Private Limited

Mr. Palem Srikanth Reddy
Ms. Stuthi Reddy

29 Contingent liabilities and pending litigations

Claim against company not acknowledged as debt - (Income Tax)
Assessment year 2006-07 - refer note below

370,766 =
436,832
(38,331)

(40‘08:{}
(36,000) »

As at As at

6,543,580 6,543,580




Note:

Pursuant to the income tax assessment for the financial year 2005 06 onwards, the Company had received various demands
from the income tax authorities in relation to the inadmissibility of certain expenditure in accordance with the provisions of the
income tax law and compliances with the arm’s length guidelines in relation to international transactions with associated enterprises.
The management, on the basis of its internal assessment of the facts of the case, the underlying nature of transactions, the
history of judgements made by the various appellate authorities and the necessary advise received from the independent expert
engaged in this regard, is of the view that the probability of the case being settled against the Company is remote and accordingly
do not foresee any adjustment to the financial statements in this regard.

30 Segment reporting
The operations of the company are predominantly related to the trading in electronic products, fashion accessories and
providing related services. As such there is only one primary reportable segment as per IND AS 108 'Operating Segments”.

31 Due to COVID-19 situation, there have been several restrictions imposed by the Governments across the globe on the
travel, goods movement and transportation considering public health and safety measures during March, 2020. The Company
is closely monitoring the impact of the pandemic on all aspects of its business, including how it will impact its customers,
employees, vendors and business partners. The Company has exercised due care, in concluding an significant accounting
judgements and estimates, inter-alia, recoverability of receivables, assessment for impairment of investments based on the
information available to date, both internal and external, while preparing its financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2020. Based on the assessment done by the management of the Company, there is no significant/material impact of COVID-
19 on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.

32 The standalone financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 25 June 2020.

33 Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified to confirm presentation as per Ind AS as required by Schedule 11l of the Act.
See accompanying notes to the financial stalements  1-33
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors
For MSKA & Associates Palred Technologies Limited
Chartered Accountants CIN: L72200TG1999PLC0O33131
Firm Registration No.:105047W
SRIKANTH
/ REDDY

d A - PALEM g

: Palem Srikanth Reddy 5. Vijaya Saradhi
A BosiarAgRnNal Managing Director Director
Partner DIN:00025889 DIN: 03089889

Membership No: 214198
\ P
\ v
A Shruti Rege
Place: Hyderabad Pinekalapati Harish Naidu Company Secretary
Date: 25 June 2020 Chief Finance Officer Membership No: A43523
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JNTU-Hitech City Road, Kukatpally,

" Hyderabad-500072, Telangana, India
& Associates Office: +91 040 6814 2971/99

Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Palred Technologies Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Palred Technologies Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as
at 31st March 2020, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive
income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred to as the

“consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the other financial information of subsidiaries the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2020, of its consolidated loss and the
consolidated total other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and

consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of consolidated financial statements in accordance with the standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in India in terms
of the Code of ethics issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”) and the relevant
provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in

forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Head Office: Floor 3, Enterprise Centre Nehru Road, Near Domestic Airport Vile Parle (East), Mumbai - 400099 INDIA Office +91 22 3358 9800
Ahmedabad | Bengaluru | Chennai | Hyderabad | Kochi | Kolkata | Mumbai | New Delhi - Gurugram | Pune www.mska.in



S.No.

Key audit Matters (Risk)

How Was the Key Audit Matter Addressed in
the Audit

Assessment of Covid 19 impact

The World Health Organization announced a
global health emergency because of a new
strain of coronavirus (“COVID-19”) and
classified its outbreak as a pandemic on
March 11, 2020. On March 24, 2020, the
Indian government announced a strict 21-day
lockdown across the country to contain the
spread of the virus, which has been/was
further extended till May 3, 2020. This
pandemic and response are creating
disruption in global supply chain and
adversely impacting most of the industries
which has resulted in global slowdown.
Covid-19 has contributed to a significant
decline and volatility in global and Indian
economy. However, the Group has not made
any provision in respect of investment in
subsidiaries or any other financial statement
area as the entity has not got affected due to
the pandemic.

The full extent and duration of the impact of
COVID-19 is currently unknown and the Group
has not made any provision as of the year
ending March 31, 2020 . This involves a
significant amount of judgement including the
duration and spread of the pandemic and any
new information that may emerge concerning
the severity of the virus, its spread to other
regions and the actions to contain the virus or
treat its impact, among others. Hence, we
have ascertained the assessment of the
impact of Covid-19 as a Key Audit Matter.

Our audit procedures in respect of COVID 19
Impact assessment include but are not

limited to:

1.Testing the design and operating

effectiveness of key controls of assessment.

2.Testing of Application controls include
testing of automated controls, reports and

system reconciliations.

3. Selecting samples based on quantitative

and qualitative risk factors.

4. Obtained an understanding and assessed
the appropriateness of the basis of evaluation

of the management.
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Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual report but does not include the

consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion there on.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated

Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive
income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the
Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the consolidated financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation

of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the Companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also responsible for

overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process of the Group.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing (“SAs”) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

We give in “Annexure A” a detailed description of Auditor’s responsibilities for Audit of the

consolidated Financial Statements.

Other Matter

a. We did not audit financial statements of four subsidiaries whose financial information
reflects total assets (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 389.08 lacs as at March 31,
2020, total revenues (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 240.11 lacs, total net loss
and other comprehensive income (before consolidation adjustments) of Rs. 59.79 lacs for
the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. These
financial information are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management and
our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our report in terms of
subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries is
based solely on such unaudited financial information . In our opinion and according to the
information and explanation given to us by the management, this information is not
material to the group.
Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal
and regulatory requirements below, are not modified in respect of above matter with
respect to our reliance on the financial information certified by the management.

b. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31,
2019, were audited by another auditor whose report dated May 30, 2019 expressed an

unmodified opinion on those statements.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

- We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid

consolidated financial statements;
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(b)

()

(e)

(f)

(9

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept by the Company so far as it

appears from our examination of those books;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive income), the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial

statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting

Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31st March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from being appointed

as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in

“Annexure B”; and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of

our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group- Refer Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements;

ii. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts
including derivative contracts.

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the

Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
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2. As required by The Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, in our opinion, according to
information, explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Group to its directors is

within the limits prescribed under Section 197 of the Act and the rules thereunder.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAIl Firm Registratij No. 105047W

A K

Amit Kumar Agarwal

Partner
Membership No. 214198
UDIN: 20214198AAAADJ6298

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25% June 2020
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PALRED TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of

such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group’s to cease to

continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audit of the financial statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial

statements of which we are the independent auditors.
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We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore, the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation procedures public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registratj No. 105047W

AW

Amit Kumar Agarwal
Partner

Membership No.214198
UDIN: 20214198AAAADJ6298

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25 June 2020
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF PALRED TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED

[Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of Palred Technologies Limited on the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Palred Technologies
Limited (the Holding Company) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as the “’Group’’ as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020, we have audited
the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company and its three

subsidiary companies which are companies covered under the Act at that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Holding Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to consolidated financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
Company'’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable

financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies as
aforesaid, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAl and
the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
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statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement

of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Group’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated

financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated financial

statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial

Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Holding Company and its subsidiary companies which are the companies covered under the Act , has
in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control with reference to
consolidated financial statements criteria established by the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies incorporated in India , considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For MSKA & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registrajv No. 105047W

AN

Amit Kumar Agarwal
Partner

Membership No. 214198
UDIN: 20214198AAAADJ6298

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25 June 2020
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Palred Technologies Limited -
Consclidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020
{All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwize stated)

As at As at
Notes 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Froperty, plant and eguipment 3 4,171,485 5,869,408
Right of Use Asset 4 (a) 17.828.075 -
Imangible assets 5 742,410 1.739.572
Financial assets
Ciher financial assets & 2 675,827 2455827
Cther non-curren! assets 7 31,387 0E6B <5 668 928
Total nen-current assets 57,104,863 39,733.B25
Current assels
Inventories f 117,967,147 42,013,133
Financial assets

Investiments g 2 BET.0BB 1.058 468

Trade receivables 10 £5.019,339 14,842 724
Cash and cash equivalenis 11 A9 842,614 37,185,252
Bank balances ather than cash and cash equivalent 12 145,612,209 192,821,604
Qther financial assels 13 6,860,809 £,681.918
Other current assels T4 08,730,421 £8.373.303
Total current assets SN 32297
Total assets 481,804,458 362,710,228
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equily share capital 15 87 3258660 97,325,660
Other equity 16 172 633,773 217 817,173
Equity attributable to owners 269 859,433 315,242,833
Mon Controlling Interest 3 156 521.625 15.210.02¢
Total Equity 2E5 381 258 330,453 BE2
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Cther financial liabilities 17 2,000,000 5.100,414
Provisions 18 2.896,731 1,712,848
Total non-current liabilities 4,996,731 6,813,262
Current labilities
Financial liabllities
Borrowings 18 120,841,732 -
Trade payables

iftolal oulstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enlerprises

iijlotal outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprise and small enterpriss 20 27 455516 6,176,572
Lease hability 4 (b) 18,338,877 -
Cther financial liabililies 17 21,146,239 17,685 470
Qiher eurrent ligbilities 21 2212788 1,762,831
Frovisions 18 331 345 18231
Total current liabilities 161,476 489 25 444104
Total liabilities 166,423,230 22,257 366

Total equity and liabilities

fE‘-?.Eﬂf‘\l,&E ]

362,710,228

See accompanying notes 1o the financial statements  1-33
The accompanying notes are an integral par of the financial slatements,

As per our report of even dale
For MEKA K Associates
Charered Accountants

Firm ﬁegistrmic:ujo.'mﬁﬂﬁw

A .
-
Amit Kumalt Agarwal
Farner

Membership Mo: 214188

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 25 June 2020

For and cn behalf of the Board of Directars
Paired Technolegies Limited
SRIKANTH

REDDY
PALEM

Falem Srikanth Reddy
Managing Director
DIN:D0025889

5. Vijaya'Saradhi
Director
DiN: D30ESEED

Shruti Rege
Company Secretary
Membership No: A43523

YD, il b A
W2\ /| Pineka i-Harish Naidu
Chief Finance Cfficer



Palred Technologies

Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2020

(all amounts in Rupees, unless

Motes
Income
Revenue from operations 22
Other income 23
Total income
Expenses
Purchase of stock-in-{rade
Changes In inventories of slock-in-trade 24
Employee benefils cxpense 35
Finance cosis %
Deprecialion and amortization expense 27
Olher expenses 28
Tolal expenses
Loss before exceptional items
Exceplicnal iterns 29

Loss for the period

Other comprehensive income

ltems that will be reclassilied subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations

Items that will not be reclassified te profit or foss
Remeasurement of nel defined benefit ability

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive loss for the year

Attributable to:

Owners of PTL
Mon-controlling inlerests
Profit is attributable to:
COwners of PTL
Mon-contralling inleresls

Other comprehensive income is atiributable to:

Owners of PTL
Mon-controlling interests
Earnings per equity share

Basic & Diuted earnings per equity share 20
welghted average number of equity shares oulstanding

during the year and considered for caiculation of basic and diluted EFES
Mominal valug per equity share

See accompanying notes lo the financial statements: 1-33
The accompanying noles are an integral part of the financial slalements.
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455 587 829
15 638,201
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339,353.351
18,128.782

471,226,120

357,482,133

371,835,805 144 350 687
(77.546,161) 14,373,272
58 283 876 72,962,956
B4H.528 B89,325
7,565,980 T.016.019
147 922 435 208,741,473
517,256,364 448,382,742
(46,070,244} (90,860, 609)

(21,620.434)

(46,070,244) [112,481,043)
{1.209,783) 1,66 302
(1,209,763) 1,666,352

[B96,633) 404 563

{B86,633) 404 563

{2,106 416) 2,070.255
_ {48176,660) _(110,470,088)

(46.561,352) (103,033,450)

491,109 (9,447 .593)

(48 66T 769) (101,107,485)

491,109 (9,302 603)

(2,106 418) 1,925 965

- 144 880

(4.78) (10.59)

9,737 566 9,732,566
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Falred Technologies Limited
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Hotes

Cash flow from operating activities

31 March 2020

For the Year
end

For the Year
end

31 March 2019

Loss belore fax {46,070,244) {(112.481.043)
Adjustments for: =

Depreciation and amortization expenses 7,565,080 7.016,0149
Dividend on Mutual Fund (450.34€) (1,258,312)
Finance cost 9,434 528 589,325
Interest income {10,905,478) (16,201,495)
Impairment loss - 21 620,434
Unrealised Forex Gain, net (1,193.763) (1.167.327)
EBslances written off - 114,610
{Gain) loss on sale of fixed assels BE 467 362, 386

Operating loss befere working capital changes
Changes in warking capital

{41,533,857)

(101,105.403)

(Decrease ) iIncrease in trade payables 21,278 207 (23 523,700)
{Decrease) increase In inventories (75,954,014) 15,563,102
{Decrease) increase In trade receivables 140,176,615) (14,B42,724)
{Decrease) increase In other current liabilities {3,100,414) (22.417.227)
(Decrease)f increase in non-current liabilities 20,075,967 (2,350,785)
(Decrease) inciease In provisions 1,805,908 2,447 351
{Increase) decrease in other financial liabilities - 934 000
Decreasel (increase) in olher financial assels 1,821,110 19,532 608
Decrease/ (Increase) in other curment assels (27 596,696) (8,318 358)

Cash generated used In operations

Taxes paid .

Net cach flows vsed in operating activities (A)
Cash flow from Investing activities

(143,590,293) (134,081,136}

—j30e2 024y — (4,104,589)

_(14€€682,417)  (138,265,725)

Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets {18,443 557) (1,681,5834)
et procesds from mutual funds (420,000} 74 266 068
Dividend income from mutual funds 450,346 1,258,312
Proceeds from sale/ dispossl of fixed assets 55,000 ZB8 654
Net proceeds from fixed depesils 47,208,385 58,323,334
Interest received [ s 14 602 143
Net cash flow from investing activities (E) 36,438,812 147,056,982
Cash flow from Financing activities —— —
Proceeds from issuance of eguily share capital - 681,500
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 120,941,732 (3,372,923)
Iflevestpa (9,434 528) __(eBg325)
Net cash flow from financing activites(¢y 111,507,204 (3,580,748)
Net increase in cash and cash eguivalents (A+E+C) 1,263,539 5,210,509
Cash and cash equivalenis al the beginning of the year 37 185,252 0,807 416
Effect on exchange rates 1,193,763 1, 167327
Cashand cash equivalents at the end of the year 29,642 614 3765252
Cash and cash equivalents comprise - —
Balances wilth banks

On current accounts 39438124 37,072 566
Cash on hand _ 204480 112,686
Tetal cash and bank balances at end of the year 39642614 T a7 A58

See accompanying noles to the financial statements 1-40
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date For and on behall of the Board of Directors

For MSKA & Assaciates SRIKANTH Palred Technologies Limited
Chartered Accountants REDDY CIN: L72200TG1999PLC
Firm Regisihtion No.-10504TW PALEM i
WA Palem Srikanth Reddy 5. Vijaya
:;:;:rumarhgamal Managing Director
. M 9 :
Membership No: 214198 DIN-D002 sl o Dj‘ﬂgﬂ ‘5%3}‘
_ Shrutaeﬁ:f
~Pinekal ari aidu

Company Secretary
Membership No: A43523

Place: Hyderabad

Date: 25 June 2020 Chief Finance Officer




Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory informationfor the year ended 31 March 2020
(All amount in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

1 Corporate Information

The Consolidated financial statements of “Palred Technologies Limited” (“the Company” or "Parent Company”) and its
subsidiaries (Collectively referred to as "Group”) are for the year ended 31 March 2020. The Company is a public
company incorporated and domiciled in India and incorporated in accordance with the provisions of the erstwhile Companies
Act, 1956. The Company's registered office is at 8-2-703/2/B/ Plot No: 2 Road No.12,Banjara Hills,Hyderabad, Telangana-
500 034, lts shares are listed on two recognised stock exchanges of India, the National Stock Exchange of India Limited
and BSE Limited. The Group is primarily engaged into trading in mobiles, electronic products, fashion accessories and
providing related services.The Board of Directors approved the consclidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2020 and authorised for issue on 25 June 2020.

2 Basis of preparation
Compliance with Ind AS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company along with its subsidiaries (tegether referred to as "Group”) have
been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (the "Act") read with rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, issued
by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™).

Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy
hitherlo in use. These consclidated financial statements have been prepared for the Group as a going concern on the
basis of relevant IND AS that are effective at the Company's annual reporting date 31 March 2020.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on accrual basis, except for
the following material items in the Balance sheetii) Certain financial assets and liabilities measured either at fair value;
andii) Net defined assets/ (Liability) are measured at fair value of plan assets, less present value of defined benefit
obligations.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Group's exposed, or variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee. Especially, the Group controls an investee if and only if the
Group has:

i. Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current abllity to direct the relevant activities of the investee)
il. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
iii. The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voling rights results in control. To support this presumption and when
the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, The Group considers all relevant facts
and circumstances in assessing whether has power over an investee, including:

i. The contractual agreement with the other voting holders of the investee

il. Rights arising from other contractual agreements,

iii. The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

iv. The size of the Group's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voling
rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or nol it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicale that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group oblains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed off during the year are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date
the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases 1o control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events
in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated
financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that
Group member's financial statements in preparing the censolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the
Group's accounting pelicies.




The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that
of the Parent Company, i.e., year ended on 31 March 2020. When the end of the reporting period of the Parent Company
is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consclidation purposes, additional financial information
as of the same dale as the financial statements of the Parent Company to enable the Parent Company to consclidate the
financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:

i. Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the Parent Company with those of
its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date,

ii. Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent's portion of equity
of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill or capital reserve.
iii. Eliminate in full intragroup assels and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between entities of the Group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets,
such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicale an impairment thal requires
recognition in the consolidated financial siatements. Ind AS12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise
from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup transactions,

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are atfributed to the equity holders of the
parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Achange in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If
the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it;

. Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

. Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

. Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

g Recaognises the fairvalue of the consideration received

. Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

. Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

. Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities

The following subsidiaries have been considered for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Name of the Company Country  Relationshi  Percentage holding/ interest %
As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019

Palred Electronics Privale Limited ('PEP’)

(formerly known as Palred Online Technologies India Subsidiary 78.17% 77.95%
Private Limited)

Palred Retails Private Limited (PRP) India Subsidiary 97.81% 86.77%
Palred Technology Services Private Limited ['PTS’) India Subsidiary 100.00% 100.00%
Palred Technology Services Inc. ('PTS Inc.’) USA Subsidiary of PTS  100.00% 100.00%
Palred Online Technologies Limited ('POT') Hong Kong Subsidiary of PEP  100.00% 100.00%
Palred Technology Shenzhen Company Lid China Subsidiary of POT 100.00% 100.00%

Falred Online Bilism Teknoljileri Ticarel Anonim Sirketi Turkey Subsidiary of PEP  100.00% 100.00%




(i) Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the Management 1o make
judgements, estimate and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amount of
assets and liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities al the date of financial statements and reported
amount of revenues and expenses during the period. Accounting estimates could change from period to period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware
of changes in circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the consolidated financial
statements in the period in which changes are made and in any future periods effected.

Information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that

have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements is included in the
following notes:

i. Note (c ) and (d) — Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets;

ii. Note {e) — |Impairment;

iii. Note (h) — Financial instruments;

iv. Note ([) — Employee benefits;

v. Note (o) — Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets; and
vi. Note (n) — Income taxes

{ii) Summary of significant accounting policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the accounting policies and measurement basis
summarized below.

a. Functional Currency

The consalidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupee ('INR') which is also the functional and presentation

currency of the Group. All financial information presented in Indian rupees has been rounded to the nearest Rupee,
unless otherwise stated.

b. Current and non-current classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Group's normal operating cycle
and other criteria set out in the Division |- Ind AS Schedule Ill 1o the Act. The Group presents assels and liabilities in the
balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when il is;

i. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.
ii. Held primarily for the purpose of trading.

iii. Expected to be realised within twelve manths after the reporting peried, or

iv. Cash and cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

A liability is classified as current when:
I. Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.
il. Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading.

iii. Itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv. There is no unconditional right to defer the settiement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

Current assets/ liabilities include the current portion of non-Current assets/liabilities respectively. All other assets/
liabilities including deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.




c. Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises purchase price, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable
from tax authorities), borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the item and
restaring the site on which it is localed,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. 1f significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (Major components) of PPE.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheel date is
classified as capital advances. Capital Work-in-progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under
installation/ under development as at the balance sheet date.

Depreciation on property, pant and equipment is calculated on pro-rata basis on straight line method using the
useful lives of the assets estimated by management. The useful life is as follows:

"

Asset Useful life (in years)
Leasehold improvement* Lease period
Plant & Machinery 10 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Cffice Equipment 5 years
Computers:- Servers 6 years

-End user devices such as, desklops, laptops etc. Jyears

Depreciation on additions/ disposals is provided on pro-rata basis i.e. from/ up to the date on which asset is ready for
use/ disposed-off.

The useful lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as anticipation of future events. The
residual values are not more than 5% of the original cost of the assets. The residual values, useful lives and method
of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year- end and adjusted retrospectively, if appropriate.

d.Intangible assets

Other intangible assets are siated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization and impairment. These are
derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are
expecled from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from disposal of the intangible assets are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss when the assels are disposed off,

Intangible assets are amortized over their useful economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible assel may be impaired. The other intangible assets comprise of computer software
expenditure and are amorlized over a period of three years. The amortization period and the amortization method
for anintangible asset is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or
the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by i

the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimate,




e. Impairment
Impairment of nan-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's tangible and intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assel or
the cash-generating unit for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. For the purpose of
impairment testing, asseis are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from
conlinuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets,

An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit or loss if the estimated recoverable amount of an asset orits
cash generating unit is lower than its carrying amount. If, at the reporting date there is an indication that a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and reversed only to the extent that
the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation
or amaortisation, if no impairment loss had been previously recognised.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss ("ECL") model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost,

Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant financing component is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses. For all other financial assets, ECL are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month

ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured
at lifetime ECL.

Loss allowance for financial assels measured at amortised cost are deducted from gross carrying amount of the
assels.

f. Leases;

The Group has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified retrospeclive approach and therefore the comparative information
has not been restated and continues to be reported under Ind AS 17,

Group as a lessee

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments
made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimale of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or o restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease
incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the
earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of
right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use
assel is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease
liability,

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, group's incremental
borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: -

i. Fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

ii. Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
thecommencement date;

ii. Amounts expecled to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
iv. The exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments
in an optional renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, an
early termination of a lease unless the Group is reasonably certain not to terminate early.




The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Group's estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if group changes its assessment of whether it will
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-
of use assel, oris recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced 1o zero,

The Company presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment property in ‘property, plant and
equipment' and lease liabilities in 'loans and borrowings' in the statement of financial position.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term leases of real estate properties
that have a lease term of 12 months. The Company recognises the lease payments associaled with these leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Comparative Information under Ind AS 17

In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group classified leases that transfer substantially all of the risks and rewards of
pwnership as finance leases. When this was the case, the leased assets were measured initially at an amount equal to the
lower of their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Minimum lease payments were the payments
over the lease term that the lessee was required to make, excluding any contingent rent.

Subsequently, the assets were accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset.

Assels held under other leases were classified as operating leases and were not recognised in the Group's statement of
financial position. Payments made under operating leases were recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis aver the
term of the lease. Lease incentives received were recognised as an integral parl of the tolal lease expense, over the term of
the lease.

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership of an asset to the Group. All other leases are classified as operating leases, Finance leases are
capitalised atthe lease's inception at the fair value of the leased propery or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in borrowings or other financial liabilities
as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the
profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Land under perpetual lease for is accounted as finance lease which is recognised at upfront premium paid for the lease and
the present value of the lease rent obligation. The corresponding liability is recognised as a finance lease obligation. Land
under non-perpetual lease is treated as operating lease.

Cperating lease payments for land are recognised as prepayments and amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease. Contingent rentals, if any, arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred.

g. Inventories:
Inventories comprise of stock-in-trade and packing materials

Stock-in-trade are valued at lower of cost and net realisable value after providing for obsolescence, if any. Cost includes
purchase price, import dulies and other taxes excluding taxes those are subsequently recoverable from the concerned
authorities, freightinwards and other expenditure incurred in bringing such inventories to their present location and condition.,
Cost of inventories is determined using the weighted average cost method.

Packing material is carried at cost. Cost of packing material is determined using the first-in-first-out methed,

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs to complete
the sales.

The factors that the Group considers in determining the allowance for slow moving, obsolete and other non-saleable inventory
include estimated life, planned product discontinuances, price changes, ageing of inventory and introduction of competitive
new products, to the extent each of these factors impact the Group's business and markets. The Group considers all these
factors and adjusts the inventory provision to reflect its actual experience on a periodic basis.




h. Financial Instruments
Initial Recognition and measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated, All other financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value and, for an item not at fair value through profit
and loss (FVTPL), transaclion cosls that are directly attribulable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial Assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
i. amortised cost;

ii, fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI") — debt investment;
iii. FV¥TOCI| — equity investment; or

iv. FWVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the pericd the Group
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Amortised cost

Afinancial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL:

i. the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assels to collect contractual cash flows: and
ii. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the princtpal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in Other Income in the statement of profit or
loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

FVTOC! - debt investment

A debt investment is measured at FVTOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
i. the asset is held within a business model whose objeclive is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

ii. the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sclely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value.
Fair value movements are recognised in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognises interest
income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss. On derecognition
of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit or
loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Equity investment

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVTOCI - equily investment). This election is
made on an investment by- investment basis.

Ifthe Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, including
foreign exchange gain or loss and excluding dividends, are recognised in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts
from OCl to profit or loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss are
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within equity. Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured-at fair value with all changes recognised
in the staternent of profit or loss.

FVTPL

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTFL. This includes
all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI as at FYTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial liahilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPLif it
is classified as held- for- trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition, Financial liabilities at
FWTPL are measured al fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in statement of
profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss, Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in statement of profit or loss.

De-recognition
Financial assets

Afinancial asset is primarily de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Group
has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Financial liabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

"

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently

enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention lo settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
and seltle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracts and interest rate risk exposures to
hedge its risk associaled with foreign currency fluctuations and changes in interest rates. Derivatives are initially measured
al fair value and subsequent to initial recognition, derivatives are measured at fair value, and changes therein are generally
recognised in statement of profit or loss, since the Group's hedging instruments did not qualify for hedge accounting in
accordance with the Ind-AS 38. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shori-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less thal are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value. For the purpose of presentation In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash
on hand, deposit held at call with financial institutions, other short - term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Dividend distribution to equily holders of the Company

The Group recognises a liability to make dividend distributions to equity holders of the Group when the distribution is authorised
and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Group. As per the corporale laws in India, a distribution is authorised
when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

i. Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of the Group at exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting period are translated into
the functional currency at the exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies which are
carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-moneta




carried at fair value or any other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was measured.

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from
those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they arise.

j- Investments in the nature of equity in subsidiaries

The Company has elected to recognise its investments in equity instruments in subsidiaries al cost in the separate financial
statements in accordance with the option available in Ind AS 27, 'Separate Financial Statemenis’.

The Company regardless of the nature of its involvement with an entity (the investee), determines whether it Is a parent by
assessing whether it controls the investee. The Company controls an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the inveslee,
Thus, the Company controls an inveslee if and only if it has all the following:

(a) power over the investee;
(b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
(c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the returns,

Investments are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 105 when they are classified as held for sale, On disposal of investment,

the difference between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and
loss.

k. Revenue recognition

The Group has adopted Ind AS 115- Revenue from Contracts with customers, using medified retrospective application
method with effect from 1 April 2018 and accordingly these consclidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Ind AS 115. The application of Ind AS 115 did not have any
significant impact on recognition and meakurement of revenue and related items in the consolidated financial statements of
the Group as the Group is yet lo identify the business opportunities in the areas of IT Solutions and services.

Revenue is recognized on satisfaction of performance obligation upen transfer of control of promised products or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Group expects to receive in exchange for those products or
Senvices.

Other income - Interest income

Interestincome is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and rate applicable. For all
debt instruments measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective inlerest rate (EIR) method. EIR
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipls over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, o the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost
of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering
all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does
not consider the expecled credit losses.

Other income - Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the Company's right to receive the payment is established, which is generally, when
shareholders approve the dividend.

I. Retirement and other employee benefits
Defined contribution plan

The Group's contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as and when the services are received
from the employees entitling them to the contributions,

Defined benefit plan

The liability in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated using the projected unit credit method with actuarial valuations
being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. The Company recognises the net obligation of a defined benefit
plan as a liability in its balance sheet. Gains or losses through remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability are recognised
in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit and loss in the subsequent periods. The effect of any plan
amendments are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.




Short-term employee benefils

Short-term employee benefits comprise of employee costs such as Salaries, bonus etc. is recognized on an undiscounted
and accrual basis during the period when the employee renders service of the benefil.

m. Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cots consists of interest, ancillary costs and other costs in connection with the borrowing of funds and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.
Borrowing costs attributable to acquisition and/or qualifying assets are capitalised as a part of the cost of such assets are
ready for their intended use. Other barrowing cosls are charged to the statements of profit and loss.

n. Taxes

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit or loss consists of current and deferred tax except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in OCI or directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in OCI or directly in equity respectively.
Currentincome tax, assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation
autharities in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICDS)
enacted in India by using tax rates and the tax laws that are enacted at the reporting date. Current tax assets and tax
liabilities are offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, orto
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assels and liabilities in the financial
statements. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when
they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right lo sel off corresponding current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same tax authority on the Group.

Adeferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised. Deferred lax assels are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. Withholding tax arising out of payment of
dividends to shareholders under the Indian Income tax regulations is not considered as tax expense for the Group and all
such taxes are recognised in the statement of changes in equity as part of the associated dividend payment.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent it is reasonably certain that the
Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance sheet date and the
carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to the effect
that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified period.

As at 31 March 2020 and 21 March 2018, the Group has deferred tax asset on account of unabsorbed business loss,
unabsorbed tax depreciation and other items, which have not been recognized on the grounds of prudence. Conseguently,
there is no deferred lax asset or liability recorded in the consolidated financial statements as at reporting periods presented.
Further, as at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, the Group has MAT credit of Rs. 9,17,53,770, carried forwarded under
the Income-tax laws, not recognised in books due to lack of reasonably certainty,

o. Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimate
of the amount of obligation can be made al the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present values, where the time value of
money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for:
i. Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the Company; or
ii. Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle

the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made. Contingent assets are neither recognized
nor disclosed. However, when realization of income is virtually certain, related asset is recognized.
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p.Cash flow statement

The Cash flow statement is prepared as per the Indirect Method, Cash flow statement present the cash flows by operating,
financing and investing activities of the Company. Operating cash flows are arrived by adjusting profit or lass before tax for
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or fulure operating cash receipts or
paymentis, and items of income or expense associated with investing or financing cash flows.

q. Exceptional ltems

Exceptional items are transactions which due to their size or incidence are separately disclosed to enable a full understanding
of the Group's financial performance. llems which may be considered exceptional are significant restructuring charges,
gains or losses on disposal of investments in subsidiaries, impairment lossesfwrite down in value of investment in subsidiaries,
significant disposal of fixed assets etc.

r. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharehaolders by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EFS is determined by adjusting the
profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares,

s. Contributed equity

Equity shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

t. Standards, not yet effective and have not been adopted early by the Company

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards. There is no such
notification which would have been applicable from 1 April 2020. There are no standards that are issued but not yet
effective on 31 March 2020.




Palred Technologies Limited
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020
{All amounts in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Furniture

In:;f;fehn?n:’m Vehicles and qu:;lf"im Computers |E1E'3mcf3‘ Total
Fixtures nstallation

3.Property, plant and equipment

Gross carrying value (at deemed cost)

As at 1 Aprl 2018 1,883,242 Ba 725 9,762 277 2,175 Bas 7,364 309 1,058 8953 22 344 440

Addition - - 281,692 171,388 708878 45,210 1,176,969

Disposals/refirement 140,280 - 363,004 103,553 17,373 308 497 1,032,707

Balance as at 31 March 20189 1,752,862 88,725 8,660,965 2,243 679 T.B55,705 TESBEE 22 488,702

Addifion - - 27,500 230,166 204 500 55,857 516,023

Dispasals/retirement - - - - - 316,600 316,600

Balance as at 31 March 2020 1,752 962 88 .T25 9,688,465 2,473,845 B, 160,205 524,923 22,690,125

Accumulated depreciation

Upto 1 April 2018 1,360,421 40,497 4 287 474 1,283,253 4,656,739 2748100 11,003,194

Charge for the year 425,577 35,386 1,600,833 482,793 2,246 169 326919  5.087.677

Adjustments for disposals/retirement 61,640 . 88,273 41,414 80,500 120840 381,867

Balance as at 31 March 2019 1,724,358 75,883 5 800,034 1,704 632 6,842 408 471,889 16,619,204

Charge for the year 22,883 3,583 997,112 300,615 678,832 72544 2,075,569

Adjustments for disposals/retirement - - - 176133 176,133

Balance as at 21 March 2020 1,747,241 70,466 6,797,146 2,005,247 7,521,240 368,300 18,518,640

Net carrying value as at 31 March 2019 28,604 13.842 3,860,931 539,047 1,113,297 313,777  5,B69.498

Met carrying value as at 31 March 2020 5,721 10,259 2,881,319 468,598 638,965 156,623 4,171,485

5. Intangible assets ' Computer Softwara Goodwill Total

Gross earrying value (al deemed cost)

As gt 1 April 2018 5.858,261 22 BB8,215 20,746 476

Additions 73,332 . 73,332

Balance as at 31 March 2018 6,931,583 22,888,215 29 819,808

Additions 239,595 . 239,505

Balance as at 31 March 2020 7,171,188 22 888,215 30,059,401

Accumulated amortization

LUpto 1 April 2018 3,273,678 1,267,781 4,541 460

Charge for the year 1,818 342 - 1,818,342

Impairment of goodwill - 21,620,434 21620434

Balance a5 at 31 March 2019 5,182,021 22 888,215 28,080 236

Charge for the year 1,236,757 . 1.236,757

Balance as at 31 March 2020 6,428,778 21,888,215 29,316,993

Net carrying value as at 31 March 2019 1,739,572 . 1,739,572

Net carrying value as at 31 March 2020 742,410 - 742,410




Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

(All amount in Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

4 (a)Right of Use Asset as at 31 March 2020

Particulars Category of ROU Asset Total
Buildings

Balance as at 1April 2018 - -

Additions 22,181,728 22181728

Deletions -

Depreciation - 4,253,653 4,253,653

Balance as at 31 March 2020 17,928,075 17,928,075

The aggregale depreciation expenses on ROU Assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the Statement of Profit

and Loss.

4 (b)Lease liabilities as at 31 March 2020

Particulars As at 31 March 2020
i} Non-Current 15,803,233
i} Current 3,535,644
Total 19,338,877
The movement in lease liabilities during the year ended 31 March 2020 is as follows:

Particulars Amount Rs,
Balance as at 1 April 2019 . =
Additions 22,181,728
Finance cost accrued during the year 1,635,708
Deletions

Payment of lease liabilities 4 478 557
Balance as at 31 March 2020 19,338,877

The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at 31 March 2020 on an undiscounted basis as follows:

Particulars Amount Rs.
Less than one year 3,535,644
One year to three years 4,931,827
More than three years 10,871,407

Total

18,338,877




Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

All amount in Rupees, unless olherwise stated)

6 Otherfinancial assets
Security deposits
Unsecured considered good Related parties
Others
7 Other non-current assets
Advance tax (net of provision)

Balances with government authorities
Total other non-current other assets

8 Inventories

Stock-in-trade (at lower of cost or net realizable value)
Packing materials {(at cost)

8 Investments

Current:

Asat 31 March 2020 ~ ~ As at 31 March 2019

1,200,000
1,675,827
2,875,827

1,200,000
1,255,827
2,455,827

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

25,667,413 26,013,162
5719653 3655766
31,387,066 29,668,928

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2018

116,190,474 40,696,038
1776673 1.317.085
117,967,147 42,013,133

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

Investments carried at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")
Investments in mutual funds, non-trade, unguoted

Nil {March 2019: B65) units kotak floater Shori term- Direct plan- DD - 1,058,468
2834153 units (31 March 2019: Nil) of Kotak Arbitrage Fund -
Monthly Dividend Reinvestment plan 28687 086 -
2 867,086 1,058 468
10 Trade receivable HNon-Current Current
As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019 As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Unsecured F
-Considered good = - 55,019,339 14,842,724
- - 55,019,339 14,842,724
Further classified as:
Receivable from others - - 55.019.339 -
- - 55,019,339 14,842,724

11 Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 March 2020 MAs at 31 March 2018

Balances with banks:
On current accounts

39,438,124 37,072,568
Cash on hand 204,490 112 6E6
39,642,614 37,185,252

There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivaients comprise the following:

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:

As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019

On current accounts 39,438,124 37,072,566
Cash on hand 204,490 112,686
39.642.614 37,185,252
12 Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalent

Balance in unpaid dividend account 3,403,237 1,840,195
Bailance in unpaid capital reduction account 1,359,835 800,802

In Fixed deposit with maturity for more than 3 months
butless than 12 months from balance sheet date 140,849,137 190,180,607
145.612.209 192 821,604

13 Other financial assets

As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2013

Interest accrued on fixed deposits 4822513 1,599,352
Accrued Income 1,521,769 6,646,075
Others 516,527 436,492
6,860,809 B,681,919

14 Other current assets As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2013
Advance recoverable in kind A M) 24 626,948 §,095,619
Balance with Governmeant Authorities - \ - 15,604,649
Others AN 29,771,712 459,094
Prepaid expenses i 2,331,761 1,213,941
Total ] 56,730,421 26.373.303

¥



15 Share capital

Equity shares As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Authorized
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each 28,038,800 280,388,000 28,038,800 280,388,000
14% Preference Shares of R5.100 each 696,120 69,612,000 696,120 69,612,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up
Equity shares of Rs,10 each fully paid 9,732 566 97,325,660 9,732,566 97,325,660
Total 9,732,566 97,325,660 9,732,566 97,325,660
{a:u Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding
For the year ended 31 March 2020 For the year ended 31 March 2018
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 9,732,566 97,325,660 9,732 566 9,732,5660
Add: |ssued during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 5,732,566 97,325 660 9,732,566 97,325,660

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
Equily Shares: The Company has only one class of eguity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share, Each shareholder Iz entitled to one
vote per share held. Dividend if any declared is payable in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares
will be entitled to receive remaining assets of ihe company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be In proportion
o the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

( ¢) Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Name of the shareholder As at 31 March 2020 As at 31 March 2019
Number % of holding Number % of holding
ofshares in the class ofshares in the class

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Stuthi Reddy . 1,000,000 10.27% 1,000,000 10.27%
Supriya Reddy FPalem 1,000,000 10.27% 1,000,000 10.27%
Sanhita Reddy 1,000,000 10.27% 1,000,000 10.27%
Passage to India Master Fund Limited 701,586 T.21% 701,586 T.21%
Ashish Dhawan 678,189 6.97% 678,189 6.97%
Palem Srikanth Reddy 602,261 6.19% 602,261 6.19%

{d) No class of shares have been issued as bonus shares or for consideration other than cash by the Company during the period of five
years immediately preceding the current year end.

{ €) Shares reserved for issue under options

The Company has established Falred Employee Stock Option scheme 2016 ("ESOP 2016") to administer for grant of options not exceeding
4,00,000 equity shares to eligible employees. The minimum vesting period shall be one year from the date of grant of options and maximum
vesling period shall not exceed five years. The exercise price per option shall not be less than face value of equity share and shall not
exceed market price of the equity share of the Company as on the date of grant of aption.

(f) Capital reduction of equity shares during 5 years immediately preceding the Balance Sheet date

Subsequent to the approval of the High Court of Judicature at Hyderabad for the State of Telangana and Andhra Pradesh for reduction of
60% of the paid up equity share capital during the financial year ended 31 March 2016, the Company has returned an amount of Rs. 16.50
at a premium of Rs. 11.50 per share and cancelled extinguished 60% of the equity shares of the Company of face value of Rs. 5 each in july
2018. After reduction, the issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share eapilal of Rs. 19,51,84 850 consisting of Rs. 3,90,36,970 equity
shares of Rs. 5 each fully paid-up was reduced to Rs. 7,80,73,940 consisting of Rs. 1,56,14,788 equity shares of Rs. 5 each.

Number of shares
1 April 2015 to 31 March 2020
Aggregate number of capital reduction of equity shares 23,422 182




16 Other equity

Reserves and surplus

As at
31 March 2020

As at
31 March 2019

Capital Reserve 14,280,000 14,280,000
Securities premium 672,030,093 672,030,093
General reserve 132,524 353 132,524 353
Retained earnings (B46,245,062) (ED2Z,968,078)
Total reserves and surplus 172,589,384 215,866,368
Other Comprehensive Income
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan {435,824) 460,809
Foreign Currency translation reserve

380,213 1,589,998
Total other comprehensive income {55,611) 2,050,805
Total Other equity 172,533,773 217,917,173

MNature and Purpose of reserve:
I. Capital Reserve

The reserve represents creation of capital reserve pursuant to the scheme of amalgamation. The Company uses capital reserve for
transactions in accordance with the provisions of the Act,

ii. Securities Premium Account

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in securities premium. In case of equity-setiled
share based paymenl transactions, the difference between fair value on grant date and face value of share is accounted as
securities premium. This reserve is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

iii. General reserve
General reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained eamings for appropriation purposes.

iv. Remeasurement of defined benefit plan

The reserve represents the remeasurement gainsi{losses) arising from the actuarial valuation of the defined benefit plan of the
Company. The remeasurement gains/{losses) are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated under this reserve
within eguity, The amounts recognized under this reserve are not reclassified to statement of profit or loss.

¥. Foreign currency translation reserve

Exchange differences on translation of the foreign operations are recognised In other comprehensive income as described In
accounting policy and accumulated in a separate reserve with in equity. The cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss when
the net investment is disposed off.

As at As at
17 Other financial liabilities - 31 March 2020 31 March 2019

(a) Non-current

Dealer Deposits 2,000,000 5,100,414
2,000,000 5,100,414

(b} Current
Liability For Expenses 4,182,153 6,476,647
Payable towards customer refunds - 1.317,135
Unpzid dividends 2,403,237 1,840,195
Unclaimed capital reduction 1,359,835 800,802
Other Payables 12,201,014 7,050,691
21,146,239 17,485,470
18 Provisions As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Non-current
Gratuity (refer note (a)) 2,996,731 1,712,848
2,996,731 1,712,848
Current
Gratuity (refer note (a)) 331,346 19,231
331,346 19,231
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{a) Gratuity

The Company provides for gratuity for employees in India as per the Payment of the Graluity Act, 1972, Employees who are in
continuous service for a period of five years are eligible for gratuity, The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is
the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionally 15 days salary multiplied far the number of the years

of service, The gratuity plan is unfunded. The assumptions used in accounting for the gratuity plan are set out below.

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
i. Change in projected benefit obligation
Projected benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 1,731,880 1,355,683
Service cost 444 AT3 705,890
Interest cost 118,401 147,469
Actuarial (gain) / loss 896,633 (361,210)
Settlements 136,690 (115,753)
Benefils paid
Projected benefit obligation at the end of the year 3,328,077 1,732,079
ii. Expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss
Service cost 444 473 705,890
118,401 147 469
Expected returns on plan assets Net gratuity costs 562,874 853,159
iii. Expense recognized in OCI
Recognized net actuarial (gain)/ loss {896.633) 404,563

iv. Key actuarial assumptions
Financial assumptions
Discount rate 6.04% 7.59%
Expected return on plan assels
Withdrawal Rate
Salary escalation rate : 7.00% 7.00%
Demographic assumplions
For Service 4 years and below 5%
For Service 4 years and below 5%
For Service 5 years and above 2%

For Service 5 years and above 2%
Mortality rate as per Indian Assured Lives Mortality 2012-14 table

v, Sensitivity Analysis
Projected defined benefit obligation

Delta effect of +1% change in discount rate (379,163) (222,444)
Delta effect of -1% change in discount rate 458,356 272453
Delta effect of -1% change in discount rate 404,649 271,267
Delta effect of -1% change in salary escalation rate (380,431) (225,428)

vi. Maturity analysis of projected benefit obligation

1 year 55424 28,740
21to 5 years 414 633 331,105
610 10 years 5,712,257 5,445 532

More than 10 years

The significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benzfit obligation are the discount rate and salary
escalation rate. The calculation of the net defined benefit liability is sensitive to lhese assumptions. Sensitivity to these factors

is disclosed above.
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As at As at

19 Borrowings 31 Marech 2020 31 March 2019
Current
Secured, loans repayable on demand from banks
Bank Over draft 120,941,732 =
120,941,732 -
Note:

I. Loan repayable on demand from banks is in the nature of bank over drafi, secured by way of fixed deposits amounting to Rs. 14
Crores and carrles 1.5% over and above the pledged fixed deposits interest rates per annum,

ii. Met debt reconciliation Amounts
Net debt as at 1 April 2018 3,372,923
Cash flows, net (3,372,923)
Interest expense 689,325
Interest paid (889,325)
Net debt as at 31 March 2019 =
Cash flows, net 120,941,732
Interest expense 5,537,736
Interest paid (5.537,736)
Net debt as at 31 March 2020 120,941,732

20 Trade payables As at As at

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises

and small enterprises 27,455,516 6,176,572
27,455,516 6,176,572

Note:

1. Refer note 33 for the Company's liquidity risk management process

2. The Micro and Small Enterprises have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. This has been relied
upon by the auditors. Details of dues to such parties are given below:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

The principal amount remaining unpaid as at the end of the year - -
The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year - -
Amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 18,

of (MSMED Act 2006) along with the amounts of payments made

beyond the appointed date during the year. - "
Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making

payment without the interest specified under the (MSMED Act 2006} - -

The amount of further interest remalining due and payable in the succeeding years, until sueh date when the interest dues as above are

actually paid to the small enterprises for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the (MSMED Act
2008)

As at As at
21 Other current liabilities 31 March 2020 31 March 2018
Statutory dues payable 2,212,789 1,762,831

Total other current liabilities 2,212,789 1,762,831




22 Revenue from operations

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Sale of Goods 446 349 063 338,853,351
Sale of Services 0238 766 . B00,000
455,587,829 339,353,351

23 Other income

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Interest income 10,154,392 16,201,485
Dividends From Mutual Funds 450 346 1,258,312
Provision no longer required, written back 2,731,290 -
Miscellanegus income 2302283 668,975
15,638,291 18,128,782

24 Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

inventory at the beginning of the year 40,077 689 54,459 894

Inventory at the end of the year (117,623,850) (40,077 689)

Foreign currency translation adjustment e (9.033)
~ (77,548,161) 14,373,272

25 Employee benefits expense

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Salaries, wages, bonus and other allowances 53,697,359 66,388,061
Contribution to Provident Fund and ESI 2,208,922 4,055,795
Gratuity expenses 562,874 853,359
Staff welfare expenses 1,814,521 1665741

58,283,676 72,962,956

26 Finance costs

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Interest on borrowing 5,637,736 889,325
Interest expense 3,886,792 i
9,434,528 889,325

27 Depreciation and amortization expense

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2.075,570 5,087,677

Depreciation of ROU Assets 4,253 653 B

Amaortization of other intangible assets 1,236,757 1918342
7,565,980 7,016,018

2B Other expenses

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Rent 323,819 8,575,536
Rates and laxes 3,937,046 1,568,179
Repairs and maintenance - olthers 1,833,459 5,037,086
Website Maintenance 398,389 -

Freight charges 191,360 1,561,828
Insurance 106,701 384,547
Office maintenance 7,148 132 6,190,347
Business promaotion expenses 70,354,066 52 BE1,842
Postage and courier 58, 744 156,761
Power and fuel 1,485,617 2,083,405
Travelling and conveyance 4 602 121 5,091,263
Delivery charges 11,818,592 53,188,556
Legal and professional charges 5,677,018 5,778,174
Auditor's Remuneration (Refer Note i) 1,800,000 2,580,998
Hosting expenses 1,501,573 5,428,784
Refunds related expenses - 312,083
Communication expenses 261,575 1,665,725
Packing material 3,754 246 7,295,322
Foreign exchange difference, net 50 4978 -

Due from collection agencies written off - 114,610
Bank charges 753,093 375,063
Printing and stationery 70,625 982,219
Sales commission 21,556,333 43,946,116
Loss on sale of PPE, net 85,467 362,386
Online platform fee 760,000 -

Packing Charges 2,246,130 =

Miscellaneous expenses 6,337,051 3.170,833

147,922,438 7 NN 208,741,473
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*Note ; The following is the break-up of Audilors remuneration (exclusive of Goods and service tax)

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
As auditor:

Statutory audit 1,800,000 2,490,998

In other capacity: - B
Other matters 100,000 100,000

Reimbursement of expenses . =
1,900,000 2,590,998

29 Exceptional items

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Impairment Cost - (21,620,434)
- [21,620,434)

30 Earnings/ Loss per share

Earnings per equity share (EPES)

Basic eamings /(loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing the loss for the year atiributable to equity holders by the
weighted average number of equity shares outsianding during the year,

Diluted earnings /(loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing the profitioss attributable to equity holders (after
adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive
potential equity shares into equity shares.

The following reflects the loss and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Loss attributable to equity holders {46,561,352) (103,033,450)
Weighted average number of equity shares 9,732 566 9,732 566
Easic loss per share (INR) (4.78) {10.59)
Diluted loss per share {INR) . (4.78) {10.59)

31Fair value measurements

(i)Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value in the statement of financial position are grouped into three
levels of a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on the abservabillty of significant inputs to the
measurement, as follows:

Level 1: Quated prices {unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments,

Level 2. The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable market data either directly or indirectly.

Level 3. If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument Is included in level 3.

(li)Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 1 Level 2

Financial assets
Current Investments 2,867,086 - 1,058,468 -

There are no transfers between levels during the year. The Group's palicy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of
fair value hierarchy levels at the end of the reporting period.

(iii) Financial instruments by category
For amaortised cost instruments, earrying value represents the best estimate of fair value.
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
EVTPL  Amortised cost FVTPL Amortised cost

Financial Assets

Current Investments 2,867,086 - 1,058 468 -

Trade receivables - 55,019,339 - 14,842,724
Cash and cash equivalents - 39,642 6814 - 37,185,252
Other Bank balances - 145,612,209 - 192,821,604
Other financial assets - 6,860,809 - 8,681,919
Total financial assets 2,867,086 247134971 1,058 455 253,531,499
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31 March 2020 31 Mareh 2019
FVTPL Amortised cost FVTPL Amortised cost
Financial liabilities
Baorrowings - 120,941,732 - -
payables - 27,455,516 - 6,176,572
lease liability - 19,338 B77 - -
Other financial liabilities - 21,146 239 - 17,485,470
Total financial liabilities - 188,882,364 . 23,662,042

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments carried at
amorisad cost;

31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Carrying amount Fair value Carrying amount Fair value
Financial Assets
Trade receivables 55,019,339 55,019,339 14 B42, 724 14,842,724
Cash and cash equivalents 39,642 614 39.642.614 37,185,252 37,185,252
Other Bank balances 145,612,209 145,612,209 192,821,604 192,821,604
Cther financial assets 6,860,809 8,860,809 8,681,919 8,681,919
financial assets 247,134,971 247 134,971 253,531,495 253,531,498
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 120,941 732 120,841,732 - -
Trade payables 27,455 516 27 4585 516 6,176,572 6,176,672
lease liability 19,338 877 19,338,877 - -
Cther financial liabilities 21,146,239 21,148,239 17485470 17,485 470
Total financial liabilities 188,882,364 188,B62 364 23,662,042 23,662,042

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, irade payables, investments, cash and cash eguivalentis and other bank balances
are considered 1o be the same as their fair values, due to their fair values, due to their short term nature.

iv. The Group's principal financial liabilities, comprise other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabllities is to finance the
Group's operations, The Group's principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other
bank balances that derive directly from its operations. The Group also holds FVTPL investments.

The carrying amounis of irade receivables, and cash and cash equivalents are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to
their shor-term nature. Difference between carrying amounts and fair values of bank deposits, other financial assets, other financial

liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost is not significant in each of the years presented. For all other amortised cost
instruments, carrying value represents the best estimate of fair value,

For financial assets measured at fair values, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values,

33 Financial instruments risk management

The Group is exposed 1o financial risks arising from its operations and the use of financial instruments. The key financial risks include
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by
the Group and seek to, where appropriate, minimize pofential impact of the risk and to control and moniter such risks. There has heen na
change to the Company's exposure to these financial risks or the manner in which it manages and measures the risks or the manner in
which it manages and measures the risks.

The following sections provide details regarding the Group's exposure to the financial risks associated with financial instruments held in
the ordinary course of business and the cbjectives, policies and processes for management of these risks:

A.Market risk:
Market risk is the risk of lass of future earnings, fair values or future cash flows that may results from adverse changes in market rates
(such as interest rates) or in the price of market risk-sensitive instruments as a result of such adverse changes in market rates and




prices. Market risk is attributable to all market risk-sensitive financial instruments, The Group’s exposure fo market risk is a
function of investing activities.

Interest rate risk:

Imerest rale risk Is the risk that fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group's investments in deposits is with banks and therefore do not expose the Group to significant interest
rates risk. The Group's rate borrowing is subject to interest rate risk. However the same is fixed at 1.5%+ interest rates on
investments in deposits. Accordingly, no interest rate risk is perceived.

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets 140,849 137 190,180,607

Financial liabilities

Commuodity rate risk:

Exposure to markel risk with respect 1o commadity prices primarily arises from Group's purchase and sale of computers, mobiles,
electronic products, fashion accessories and related services, These are commodity products, whose prices may flucluate
significantly over short periods of time. The prices of the Group's purchases generally fluctuate in line with commadity cycles and
are generally more volatile depending upon the market conditions. Commaodity price risk exposure is evaluated and managed
through operating procedures and sourcing policies, For the reporing pericds presented, the Group had niot entered into any
matenal derivalive contracls lo hedge exposure to fluctuations in commodity.

B. Credit risk

Credit risk on Cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Group generally invest in deposits with banks and financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies, Invesiments primarily include investment in liquid
mutual fund units and certificates of depasit which are funds deposited at a bank for a specified time period. None of the Group's cash
eguivalents, including term deposits {i.e. :;l.fn'tiﬁcales of deposits) were past due or impaired as at the reporting periods.

C. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Group manages its
liquidity risk by ensuring. as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risk to the Group's reputation.

The Group's principle sources of liquidity are cash and cash equivalents and current investments. The Group believes that the
working capltal is sufficient to meet its current requirements. Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived. The Company closely monitors

its liquidity position and maintains adequate source of funding. The Group had following working capital at the end of the reporting
yesr.

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Current Assets 424 699,625 322,976,403
Current liabilities 191 426,409 25 444 104

Working Capital 233,273,128 287,532,299

Except for other non-gurrent financial liabilities, all the contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities are payable on demand

or are expected to be paid with in one year from the respective reporting years. Dealer deposits are expected to be settled beyond 1
year from the respective reporling years.

Foreign Currency Risk
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign cu rrency transactions, mainly in the nature of purchases denominated

in fareign currencies and ather expenditures like sourcing commission. As a policy, the Group does not hedge any of its exposure to
fareign currency

D. Excessive risk concentration

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counter party to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligalions. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals and continuously maonitoring the creditworthiness of collection agencies
to which the Group grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Group establishes an allowance for credit losses and
Impairment that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of irade and other receivables.

Financial assets that are neither past due or nor impaired
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Company generally invest in depasits with banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international and domestic credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include investment in liquid nd units
and cerificates of deposit which are funds deposited at a bank for a specific time period. None of the Gro ents
including term deposits (l.e. certificates of deposits) were past due or impaired as at the reporting period.




Trade and other receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of
the eustomer, including the default risk of the industry and region in which the customer operales, also has an influence on credil
risk assessment.The group has expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Group uses a provision
mairix o compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade and other receivables. The provision matrix takes inlo account
available external and internal credit risk factors such as default risk of industry, credit ratings from credit rating agencies and
histarical experience for customers. During the year, the Group has written off Rs. Nil (31 March 2019: Rs. 1,14610) of dues from
collection agencies,

34 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard their ability o continue as a going concern, so that they can
continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other shareholders, and maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital, In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to sharehoiders, issue new shares or sell assels, Gearing ratio is nil as at various reporting dates.
There have been no material breaches in the financial covenants of any borrowing in the current period.

35 Related Party disclosures
(a) MNames of the related parties and nature of relationship

Names of related parties Nature of relationship

Mr. Palem Srikanth Reddy Key Management Personnel

Mr. Pinekalapati Harish Naldu, CFC Key Management Personnel

Mrs. Ehruti Rege, Company Secretary Key Management Personnel

Ms. Supriya Reddy Relatives of Key Management Personnel
Ms. Stuthi Reddy Relatives of Key Management Personnel

(b} Transactions with related parties:

For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Mr, Palem Srikanth Reddy Remuneration® 3,000,000 3,000,000

Mr. Palem Srikanth Reddy Reimbursement of expenses 979,262 292 589

Mr. Pinekalapati Harish Naidu Salaries including bonuses 2,500,000 2,500,000

Mr, Pinekalapati Harish Naidu Reimbursement of expenses 80,181 -

Mrs. Shruti Rege Salaries including bonuses £01,000 -

Ms. Supriya Reddy Rent - 900,000

Ms. Stuthi Reddy Rent - 1,500,000

*Remuneration nof include post employment benefits and other long term employee benefit expenditure which are computed for
Company as a whole,

( ©) Balances receivablef{payables) As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Mr. Palem Srikanth Reddy (38.331) (40,087)
Ms. Stuthi Reddy (36,000} -

36. Contingent liabilities and pending litigations

As at As at
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Disputed income tax liabilities
Claims against company not acknowledged as debt 6,543,580 6,543,580

= {income tax)

ZERNOI
& 4565\
fﬂ‘ﬁl

—

‘o7



Note:

Pursuant to the income {ax assessment for the financial year 2005 06 onwards, the Group had received various demands from the
Income tax authorities in relation to the inadmissibility of cerlain expenditure in accordance wilh the provisions of the income tax law
and compliances with the arm's length guidelines inrelation to international transactions with associsted enterprises. The managemen,
on the basis of its internal assessment of the facts of the case, the underlying nalure of transactions, the history of judgements made
by Ihe various appellate authorifies and the necessary advise received from the independent experl engaged in this regard, is of the
view that the probability of the case being setiled against the Company Is remote and accordingly do not foresee any adjustment to
the financial statements in this regard.

37 Segment reporting

Afler cansidering the Company's business model and fhe internal financial reporting, the management has identified only one reportable
segment which is “Trading in computers, mobiles, electronic products, fashion accessories and providing related services”. Furiher,
all operations and location of PPE of the Company are based in India and hence, no separate financial disclosures are applicable in
accordance wilh the requirements of Ind AS 108- Operating segments.

38 Due to COVID-19 situation, there have been several restrictions impased by the Governments across the globe on the travel,
goods movement and transportation considering public health and safety measures during March, 2020, The Group is closely manitofing
the impact of the pandemic on all aspects of ils business, including how it will impact its custlomers, employees, vendors and
business partners. The Group has exercised due care, in concluging on significant accounting judgements and estimates, inter-alia,
recoverability of receivables, assessment for impairment of investmenis and inventories based on the information evailable to dale,
both internal and external, while preparing its consolidated financial stalements as of and for the vear ended 31 March 2020, Based
on the assessment done by the management of the Group, there is na significantmaterial impact of COVID-18 on the cansolidated
financial stalements for the year ended 31 March 2020,

39 The consalidaled financial statements are appraved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 25 June 2020,

40 Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified 1o confirm preseniation as per Ind AS as required by Schedule Il of the Acl.

See accompanying notes lo the financial statements  1-33
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial sialements.
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